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Independent Auditors Repart

To the Members of ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as
ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly
known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED) (hereinafter referred to as the *Halding
Company®) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the
Group™}, which comprise the consclidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consalidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including & surmmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consaolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act") in the manner sa reguired and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, of its consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibifiies for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Siatements section of our report, Ve are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of reports of the other auditar referred ta in paragraph (&) of the *Other Matter”
section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information

The Halding Company's Management and Board of Directars are responsible for the other information.
The other infarmation comprises the information included in the Holding Company's directors’ report, but
does not include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Qwr opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do nat
express any form of assurance canclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements. our respansibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based an the wark donefaudit reports

ar ofher auditor, we conclude That there 15 a matenal missiaterment of this ather infarmation, we are
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK
SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Management's and Board of Directars’ Responsibilities for the Censolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directars are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consclidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consclidated state of affairs, consolidated profit’ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statemant of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directers of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directars either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consalidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obfain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of
internal contral,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are apprapriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143{3){i} of the Act, we are also responsible

far expressing our opinion on whether the company has adeguate inlernal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
: imates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.
&i{!’(
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK
SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concemn
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumplion. IT we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events ar conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in 8 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infermation of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consalidated financial statements.
\We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditars. For the other entities included in the consalidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them. \We remain solely responsible for our
audit apinion. Our respensibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section
titled “Other Matter” in this audit repart.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other enfities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Cther Matier

We did not audit the financial statements financial of 4 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 765.29 milion as at 31 March 2023, total
revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 1,255.92 million and net cash flows (before
consolidation adjustments) amounting to INR 18661 milion for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consclidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited
by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in
so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditor,

Cwr opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and cur report an Other Legal and Regulatory
Raquirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on
the wark done and the reparts of the other auditor.

Repart on Other Legal and Regulatery Reguirements

1.

As reguired by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Crder”) issued by the Central
Government af India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder, to the extent applicabla,

required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor's Report {Confinued)

ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK

SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

the other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditor, as notad in the "Ciher Matter” paragraph, we repor, to the extent applicable, that:

Ve have sought and obtained all the infarmation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statementz.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consclidated financial staterments have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditor, except that the back-up of the books of account
and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has not been kept on servers physically
lacated in India on a daily basis.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss {including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directorsof the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from
being appainted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating te the maintenance of accounts and other matters connacted therawith
are as stated in the paragraph 2Aib) above.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial eontrals with reference to financial
staterments of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure BT

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditor on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the "Other Matter” paragraph:

d.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2023 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, Refer Mote 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Inwestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorparated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i} The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated

in India represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Mote 51 to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or

£ e
= = = = FAE L 0 Lri=

subsidiary companies to ar in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
mannar whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiany companies
Lltimate Beneficiaries") ar provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate
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B SR & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor's Report {Continued)

ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK

SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED}

Beneficiaries.

{ii} The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorparated

in India represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Mote 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Halding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies from any personis) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {"Funding Parties™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Helding Company or any af
such subsidiary companies shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persans or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Uttimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on the audit procedures parformed that have been considerad reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
reprasentations under sub-clause (i} and (i) of Rule 11{g), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared
ner paid any dividend during the year.

C. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/payable during the current year by the Holding Company to its directors is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid/payable to any director by the Holding
Campany is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 187 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 187{16) of the Act which are required to be
commentad upon by us. All the subdiary companies are private limited companies, accordingly the
reguirements as stipulated by the provisions of section 197(18) of the Act were not applicable to its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For B S R & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 11823 1W/\WW-100024
944_@ kG
Gajendra Sharma
Farther
Flace: Gurugram Membership Mo.: 084440
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:230684440BGYXGAZ515
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B SR & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known
as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED) for the year ended 31 March
2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Dther Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

1) In our opinich and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Repaort)
Order, 2020 reports of the companies incorporated in India and included in the consalidated
financial statements.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo 11623 1WAWW-100024

Yasws

Gajendra Sharma

Partner
Flace: Gurugram Membership Mo.: 084440
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAlI UDIN:23064440BGY XGAZ519
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B SR & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE
MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED) for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2{A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of cur report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS
LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED) {hersinafter referred to as
“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the intermal financial
controls with reference o financial statements of the Helding Company and such company incorporated
in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date,

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies, as were audited by the other auditor, the
Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, has, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such
intermal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based an the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the
essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Contrels Dver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
MNote™).

Mariagement’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’'s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
rmaintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respeclive company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Mote. These respansibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective campany's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completenass of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infarmation, as
required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial contrals with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance MNote and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statemeants were
-established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial staterments and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
intarnal financial contrals with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the nsk that a material

weaknessexists —and-testingand-evatuating-the—design-and-operating-effectivenessof-internat-controt
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. whether due
to fraud or erar.
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B SR & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE
MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED) for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor
of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matter paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Finarcial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. & caompany's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonahble detail, accurately
and Tairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autharisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonahle assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherant Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial coantrols with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatemeants
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
intermal financial controls with reference to financial staterments may become inadequate because of
changes in conditiens, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may detericrate.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(2)0) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as il relates to four subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the correspanding report of the auditor
of such companies incorporated in India.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE
MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED) for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

Chur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

ForB S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration Mo 11623 TWAWW-100024

Wnaswms

Gajendra Sharma

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership Mo.: 064440
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAl UDIN:23064440BGY XGAZ519
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OMNE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
CArmounts in INR milliors, urless obberwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets
Mon=-current assets
Property, plant and equipmant 4 21.16 26.45
Right-of-use assel 42 124.21 86,53
Financial assets
{i} Tnvestrnants 7ia) 16.21 10,57
(i3 Olher financial assets el 17.66 41,79
Deferred tax assets {nel) 27 . 31.15
Non-current tax assaks {nat) 19 117.29 230.14
Clher non-current assets 2 1,339,459 L,360.93
Total nen-current assets 1,636.02 1,767.36
Currant assats
Firanzial assets
(i) Trads receivablas k] 758,51 284,39
(i) Cash and cask eguivalents 10 935,78 477,49
(i) Ban« balances obhor Lhan (i} above 10 2,680.15% 3,364.05
(v Other fimancial assets i) 835,50 2,266,605
Other cument assets B 295.96 181,34
5,507.32 6,593.94
Total assets 7,143.34 8,361.30
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital L11(ay 114,38 114.38
Olher eguity 12 1,312.56 2,0581.04
Total equity 1,426.04 2,165.42
Liabllitles
MNan-current liabilities
Firancial lizbilities
(i} Borrowings 13 224,96 -
(i) Lease liabilities 42 113.78 59.54
{1y Ocher financial liahilities 15 0.35 0.35
Privvisians 1& 22.04 20,28
Total non-current llakilities 361.13 BO.17
Current liabilities
Financial liaklliles
(i) Bomowings 13 1,697.77 1,509.14
(11} Lease lHabilities 42 19.1%8 847
(fii}) Trade payables 14
fa) Total cutstanding dues of micro enterarise and small enterprises 94,726 55.13
1B Total outstanding dues of craditors ather than
micra entarprises and amall enterprises 1,084.07 £492,81
(v} Other Minancizl liabilities 15 2,298,652 3,725.04
Canlract lizbilities 17 2376 38,63
Other current liabilives 1 11500 67,43
Provisions 16 21.60 13,06
Total current liabilltles 5,355.27 6,115.71
Total liabilities 5,716.40 6,195.88
Total equity and liabilities 7,143.34 8,361.30
Summary of slaniflcant accounting palicies 2

The notes referred Lo abows Torm an integral part of the consolidatec firancdal statements,

As per oL repart af even date attachad

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accourtants

ICAI Firmy Registraticn Mo, L16231W/A-100024

q{l/\;u e

Gajendra Sharma
Partner
Mambarsaip Moo 064440

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as

N

%
ipif Preet Singh Upa
Managing Director Chai

A& Chiaf Executive Officer

ONE HI:IBQ‘WIK 5Y MSPRIVATE LIMITED)

na Rupkrishan Taku

‘Whale-time Directar

UM 2306444 0BGYKGAZELD

Place: Gurugram
Date @ 28 September 2023

DIN: 02019594 Chiof Cperating Officer,

wal
ary Secrelary

Plaza: Gurugram
Date : 28 Seprember 2023

& Chief Firancial Clficer
., t& _ DIN:DZezasey




OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as DMNE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(amounts in INE millions loss ptherwise stated)

Noles For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year anded
31 March 2022

Incamea
Rewvenue from nnerations 2 S.484 .07 5,265.65
Orhear incoms 21 21649 165.54
Total incoame 5,611.16 5,432.19
Expanseas
Employee banefits awpanss 22 QR iR 1,072,406
Ubhar expansas 25 a, 154,11 5,452,657
Total expenses 6,170.36 6,525,13
Earnings before Interast, tax, depreciation and amortisation (ESITDA) {559.20) (1,092.94)
Fnance casks 23 I E B 105,13
Cepresiztion and amerlisation expense 24 43R 20,50
Loss bafore exceptional items and tax [BO6.26) T (1,223.06)
Excaptinnal items 49 - 4al.12
Loss hefore tax (BOE.26) {1,284.18)
CUFFBAT Fax 27 0,73 2.16
Cefarred tax 3 31.13 4.72)
Total tax expense/(credit) 31.88 ) nfiz.sﬁ_}
Loss for the year [B3B.14) (1,281.62)
Other comprehensive Income (0CI)
Itams that will not be reclassified subsequently bo profit or loss:
Remeasurament ol net defined benefic iakility i [1.42] 13.24
Equity nstruments at FUOCT - nel channe in fair valuo Ha) S.84 2.67
Other comprehensive income for the year 4.42 15.81
Total comprehensive loss for the year {833.72) {1,265.71)
Loss for the year attributable to:
-Owners of The Company {838.14] [1,281.62)
{838.14) [1,281.62)
Other comprehensive income for tha year attributabla to:
Cwners af the Company 4,47 15,91
4,42 15.91
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to: o
-Cwiners af the Company {B33.72} 11,265.71)
Earnings per share: 26
- Loegg per share {Rasic and Diluted) ; (14,64 [23.04)
Surmmary of significant accounting policles 2

The nates reférred (o alve form an integral part of the consolidated finzneal statemants,
A por vur repork of even date attached
For B 5 R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
1Al Firm Beglabrakion Mo, 11623 0W,00W-100024

%M wAg %‘ o ;ﬂ—ﬁ‘
Gajendra Sharma BipiniPreet Singh Upasapa Ruphkrishan Taku

For and cn 2ehalf of the Board of Directors of
OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formedy Known as
ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Partner
Mamhearsaip Mo, : D644
LIDTN: 2306444 006G AGAZ519

Place; Guregram

Mzraging Eireckar
i Chiet Fracutive Qficer
I 02019554

I 1

Chairpersoen,
Whole-time Director
Chief Cparating Oficer,
B Chief Financlal Officer
L iN29 /9357

Sk B-Saptasnbar 2022

ot
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ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

fAmounts e IMR millions, unless otherw se slaked)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adfustments to rocanafo foss bofore tax to nel cash Noves:
Depreclaticn of property, slent and equisment
Depreciation of right of use assat

Bad debts

Advances written off

Inkerest ncoma

Exceptiznal items

Frovisian for doubtful acdvanses

Lass on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment {net)
Share-nased zayment expense

Finance costs

Fnancial guarantss expenss

Frowvision for oss on ZIP product (refer note 41)

Lizhilites § provisions no langar required writhen back
Imzairment less on trede receivables

Rewversal of impairment loss on trade receivaoles
Operating Profit before working capital changes

Changes in

Trade receivablas

Other tinancial assets

Other carrent assets

Other Dank Dalances (Escrow and Naodal acoourts)
Other financial lizbilities

Caontract lazlities

Trade payables

Other llakillities

Frovisions

Cash generated from/{used in) operations
Income tax {paid)/refund, net

MNet cash generated from/(used in} operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Furchase of property, plant and equipment

Interest receivad on bark deposits

Investmerts in bank depasits not considered in cash and cash
aquivalents

Redamption of bank deposits not corsidered in cash and cash
couivalerks

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Praceads from issues of equity shares
Praceads [rom issucs of profercnos shares
Proceads from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Proceads af non-convertible debentura
Fepaymert of non-convertible debentura
Pawment of lease liabilities

Share issue expenses

Interest and other barrowing cost

Met cash generated from financing activities

Met (decrease)/ increasa in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the teginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {nate 10}

Motes

11

43
49

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

[B0E.26) (1,284, 18)
19,80 16.01
23.02 4,498
13.00 -
10,29 12,37

(92,723 {69.71]
= §1.12
56,90 2ot
- 0.38
55,24 264,04
204,24 103,13
1,095.93 907.69
- 10&.91
(67.32) -
4.95 -
- (5.02)
555.07 122.48
{482,09% 59,04
1,188,159 (1,351.50
(84,35} (1,010.31)
754,32 (1.012.87)
(2,303.91) (11.26]
(14,871 (38.63)
497,21 37,44
47.57 10.22
2.88 16.77
158.02 {3,123.62)
112,11 (8Z.24)
270.13 (3,205.86)
[14.511 (33.45)
65,40 48.20
(1,199.55) (5,974.49)
i
1,141,958 RAARNS
{6.78) (847.72)
- 1,055,995
0,04 2. 154,44
- 353.00
{95,08) (67.92)
543.04 -
{54.00) (25.45)
(25,44 (3.71)
L (F7.42)
(188.858] (108.72)
179.68 3,294.16
443.03 {750.42)
(7326.57) 22.85
{293.54) (736.57)




OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(amounts in INE milliors, uanlass olberwise steked)

Motes
1. Changes in Hazlties arislng fram financing activices

Non canvartihls dabaniures

Opening balance

Recaived during the year

Arortizaton of Interest and other charges on barrowlngs
Fepavments dursing the year - Principal

Repaymenis during the year - Interest

Closing balance

Sarrowings (excioding bank overdrait)
Jpening balance

Proceeds during the year
Repayments during tha year

Closing balance

Lazse dabiites fnako 42)

As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

- 25.45
543.04 =
51.56 niz
{5et,00) (25.45)
{48.19) {0.12)
482.41 -
295.08 -
. 363.40
{05.08) (E7.22)
200.00 205.08

2. The above consolidated staterment of cask flow from operating activisies has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in MD AS-

7 "Statemant of cash flows",

Summary of sigrificant accounting policies

2

The nates referrad to above form an integral part of the consalidatad fnancial statemsants.
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OFE MOBIEWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {fenmerly kiiown x5 ONE HOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PATVWATE LIMITED
ConsaEdated Statement of Chanaes In Cautty far the year snded 31 Marcs 2033
o I el ol 2l e s

A1 Equity afhiars capital (radur nobe 110a) . 98 and 335

Enuity slaies of TME 40 each lssued. subscribed and fully pald up Amaunt
&z ak | Aprll Z0F1 10.%5
[COCRS Lo douity shaies durina the wzai ficfer noce 481 035
nomal Insued durnn b wems reer nnke 1117 Q.
Ares spl s wrar S nole S6 044
|ha at 31 March 2032 &
[ Zaulty smare tApEAl e durnn b e (e onte 10
= Includzs issue af ane eauky shase of 183 10, roorced oft ks 500 an convesien ko IHE millisn
Equity shurus of [MF I each issucd, subscribed and fully paid up Amaunt
fim w¥ 1 April 2021 -
Shares sollt doring b vear AU
Tex = af bani srarms 1 31.2e
Zocrerail of SOCRS Lo Cauity sharcs doring the vesr frsfer none 401 FERE
o= af 20ulty Sares on exerzlse o share Fasel Aeanis oring Hs guar 143
Fauily stwrn Capital {5600 Curie the vear frefe ate 131 137
A5 at 31 March 20322 11438
Erulby shars mapital s cures Hin wear ruiue cGle 111 P -
rE ila.an

b3 Inwbrumunts entirely soudly in nature

[1} Cumualative compulsery convertible proferenos shares (CCCPST of IMA 10 each issued, subsciibed aid fully paid up (refer nobe 1100]]

Farticulars |
AL ot 1 Aordl 29321
Prete-ani b share Al tamuieal loringy Ui yier frafar noe 1134

oo of TOCPS b caulbe sharss duing Be ves

At
157
‘refer nake A0 LT

s st 31 Marcn 2033

(i) Cumsulative compulsory convertible preference shanss [CEOPE) of TNA 1040 sach izawed, subacribed and fully paid ap{refer nots 13 b} and 335]

Pasoalars Smount
Az at 1 Anrdl 20371 1AL F0
el share caatal issued duing e vear frcfer note L1 15,37
Comverslos of DUTPS boosculby shares didnng b gees ireeer ks 111 CLRRLIL

Ax at 31 Warch 012 =
efeence share canwal iscued dudnn the veer frzfer note L1 5
Ax wt A1 March 2033 =

fcl Qther enwlty Crefer nots 12, 48 and 45

Parbiculars Haney recelued Share Rescive 3nd Surphis P Othar | Tatn] otter
agalnst share application Employay whari| i camiprehaneive | maquity
warrants | oeeney pending pramium | options ruseres Incame
allotmient |

Az wt L Aprill 2021 9.75 Je.s1 256600 pra PR - [I54.45)
Total camprahansive kaxe for Hee year andud 51 March 2021

Tes Tor Uik swan aiced - - - - - L2162
Remezsreney of ret def rad hemefik [obliby A - - - | 15
Pty rrtraeieeds al FYOC0- del charge in T saluz - - - 267 2.67
Tatal camorehensive koss | s - - - [L.2EE.38) 287 1.283.71}
Tramsactions with owners, racordad directly in eouits

Emaiayss 2ha e based prarent exoons - - - HE1IH - =

Shere warAn: anees fstar noke 130H | 0,05} - - E

Sharw azsdiaten -recey adicaied - - - - -

[E5uz of cauity $Heres on exarzise of chars Eazed Aennds sorinn b mer - - 105,52 P11
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ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED

{formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INE millions, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information

ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly known as OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE
LIMITED?} {"the Holding Company” or *the Company™) was incorporated on 20 March 2008 undeor the
Companies Act, 1956, The registered office and corporate office of the Halding Company are situated
in Gurugram, Haryana. The principal place of business of the Group is in India,

The principal activities of the Group (i.e., the Holding Company and its subsidiaries) consist of izsuing
and operating prepaid payment instrument [Wallet Payment System) and providing payvment galeway
saryvices, The Holding Company was authorised by Reserve Bank of Tndia for issuance and operation
of mobile based pre-payment instruments subject to terms and conditions detailed in the certificate
of authorisation datad 18 July 2013 for five years, which was subsequently extended to 30 September
2023 vide renswal certificate dated 30 September 2020, The users use their Mobikiwilk wallet for
transferring meoney, for paying their otility bills {prepaid recharge, post-paid mobile, landling,
olectricity, TV, ete.) and for shopping anling an e-commerce websites, The Holding Company has also
provides financial services platform facilitating various loans product in association with financing
partners. The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at Unit no. 102, 1% Floor, Block —
B, Pegasus One, Golf Course Road, Sector 53, Gurugram, Haryana.

These Consalidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
passed by Board of Directors on 28 September 2023,

. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

Tha Consalidated Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehansive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023 and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together referred
Lo as 'Consolidated Financial Statements) has been prepared under Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind
A5 notified under Section 133 of the Cormpanies Act, 2013 (the "Act?,

Accounting policies have been consistenty applied except whers 8 nawly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
pulicy hithertoe in use,

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been preparad on the historical cost basis as explained
in the accounting policies below, except for the fallowing:

+« certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair valus (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an arderly
transaction hetwoen market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whather that price
iz directly ohsarvable or estimated using another valuation technique,

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset ar llability If market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for owersesing all significant fair values
measurements, including Level 3 fair wvalues, and reparts directly bto the head of finance,

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, If
third party information, such as broker quoles or pricing services, is used to measure fair values,




OMNME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED

(formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

then the finance team assesses the evidence abtzined from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the requirgmants of Tnd A5, including the leval in the fair value higrarchy
in whiich the valuations should be classifiad.

Significant valuation issues are reporkted to the board of directors,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair valus measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2, 0r 3 based on the degrea to which the inputs to the fair value measuremeants are observable and
the significance af Lhe inputs Lo the fair value measurement in s entirety, which are described as
follows:

+ Lewvel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asssts or
liahilities that the Greup can accass ab the measurement date;

= Lewvel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Lewel 1, that are
abservable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= Leyel 3 inputs are unchservable inputs for the asss=t or liability,

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as
far as passible. IF the inputs usad (o measure the fair value of an asset or a liahility fall inta different
levels ol Lhe falr value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categonsed in its entirely in the
same |level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
MeasUrement.

Al armounts disclesed inthe Consalidated Financial Statements and notes have been rocunded off to
the nearest INR millicns as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated,

Tha preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements requires the use of certain critical
accounting judgements and estimates, It also requires the management to exercise judgemsnt in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the
Consalidated Financial Statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgemeant ar complaxity,
are disclosed in Note 3.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

Consolidation of & subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Caompany loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
fram the date the Cormpany gains control until the date when the Company ceases Lo control the
subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each compeonent of other comprehensive income are atbributed to the owners of the
Company and ta the non-centrolling interests, Total comprehansive income of subsidiaries is attributed
Lo the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

YWihen necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions
hetween members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

The Conzolidated Financial Staterments include the financial Information of ONE MOBIFKWIK
SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITEDY and its
subsidiaries as set out below,




OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED
{(formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20232
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Mame of the Company Country of %4 of Holding
Incorporation
31 March 31 March
2023 2022

ZAAK EFAYMEMT SERVICES FRIVATE India 100 100

LIMITED

MACBIKWIK FINAMCE PRIVATE LIMITED India 1600 100

MOBIKWIK CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED | India 100 100 |
i__H.-‘i'-.H"u’EST FINTECH PRIMATE LIMITED |  India 00 100

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies

The accaunting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have heen consistantly
applied, to all the pericds presented in thess Consolidated Financial Statements,

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:

{i] Expectad ta be realised or intendad to be sold or consumed In normal operating oycle
{ii} Held primarily for the purpose of trading

{iii] Expected to be realised within twelve maonths after the reporking period, or

{iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

far at least twealve months after the reporting period.
All other assels are classified as non-current.

A liabilicy s classified as current when:

i It Is expected to be settled In normal oparating cycle
{ii] It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
{iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

i) Theare is rio unconditional right to defar the settlameant of the liahility far at least twelva
monkhs after the reporting period.

Tha Group classities all other liabilities a5 non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cvcle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b} Revenue from contract with customers

The Group derives revenue primarily from following services:

«  Commission income from sale of recharge, bill payvments and merchant payments

«  Fees (or money transfer service from user's wallel Lo bank account

« Revenue from share in interest income, processing fes, activations fees, penaltiss and other such
incomes on account of servicing of loans products through lending partners. [ Digital Financial
Services)

«  Revenue from technology platform services

«  Payment gateway servicas

«  [pcome from advertisement/sale of space

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with custormers when it satisfiss a performance
transaction price allocated to the performance abligaticn satisfied, Performance abligation is satisfied
upon transfer of control of service to a customer,




OMNE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED

{formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR millions, unless octherwise stated)

Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
far transferring good or service to a customer excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf on
Gowvernment. An antity estimates the transaction price at contract imception, including ary variabla
consideration, and updates the al estimate sach reporting period for any changes in circumstances.

Variahle consideration such as discounts, wolume hased incentives, any paymeants made to a customer
{unless the payment is for a distinct good or service received from the customer) is estimated using
the expected value method or most likely amount as appropriate in a given circumstance. An entity
includes estimates of variable consideration in the transaction price anly to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal In the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertzinty associated with the wariable considsration is resolved.

The Group provides incentives to its usars in wvarlous forms Including cashbacks and supercash.
Cashbacks and supercash given to users where the Group recovers & conwvenience fee are classified
as reduction of revenue. However, when these incentives offered to the users are higher than the
incame earned fram the users, the excess (1e., the incentive given to a user less income earned from
the users) on an individuzl transaction basis is classified under busingss promotion expenses,

Where the Group acts as an agent Tor selling gonds ar services, only the commission income is included
within revenue, Typically, the Group has a right to payment before or at the point that services are
delivared. Cash receivaed before the services are delivered is recognised as a contrack liability, The
amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing companent as payment terms are
less than one year.,

The Group's contracts with customers may include multiple performance obligations. For such
arrangaments, the Group allocate revenues o each performance obligation based on its relative
standalone selling price. The Group generally determing standalone selling prices basad on the prices
charged to customers or using expectad cost-plus margin.

Commission incame from sale of rechargs, bill payments and marchant payments:

The Group facilitates recharge of talk time, utility bill payments and merchant payments and earms
commission for the respective services, Commission income is recognized when the control of services
is transferred to the customer i.e. when the services have been provided by the Group.

Such commission is generally determined as a pereentage of monetary value of transactions processed
or gross merchandise value. The Group typically contracts with merchants, financial institutions, ar
affiliates of those parties. Contracts stipulate the types of services and articulate how fees will be
incurred and calculated. Commission income ara recognized ach day based an the value of transaction
at the time the transactions are processed.

Armount received by the Group pending settlement are disclosed as payable to the merchants under
other financial liakilities.

Feas for maney transfer service fom psar's wallet fo bank account:

Commission on maney transfer represents the amount earnsed from the users in the form of
commissich on the withdrawal of money by the users from their wallets and transfer the same to the
bank accounts of their chaice using the IMPS facility, Cormmission on money transfer is recognised an
satisfaction of the associated performance abligation i.e. on transfer of money, and hasis the standard
agreement entered with the respective users.

Commission on payment gateway services;

The Graup facilitates payment gateway services and earns commission from merchants and recognises
such revenus when the control of services is transferred to the customer i.e. when the services have
besn provided by the Group. Such comemission is generally determined as a percentage of transaction
value processed by the Group.




ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED

{formeriy known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Armounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Ravania from sharg in nfarast income, procassing foe, penaltios and other such comes an sccount
of servicing of foans products through lznding parfners;

Share in interest income (met) is earned on the lnans to users by respective lending partners. This
income is shared by the Group as per lerms of agreement with service providers and accounted on
accrual basis. Processing fees is recognised an satisfaction of associated performance obligation i.e.
on sourcing of customears for lending partners and when amount of loan ar credit is transferred o the
user's wallet based on standard agreements entered with the respective lending partners, Penalty fees
for customer defaulks i.e. delayed payment of instalment of loan proeduct, is recognised as revenue on
receipt of payment from customer, Other such incomes an account of loan facilitation services,
collection, monitoring etc is recognised in ling with the period of service obligation.

Revanue from technology platform sonvices:

The Group has contracts with customers to provide technolegy platform services, in the form of service
of design, development, cperation and maintzhance of technology-based producks, cone-time
integration, setup and technology fee, etc, either Independently or bundled with merchants,
transacticn processing and loan processing services. The Group bypically contracts with financial
institutions and merchant aggregatars, Contracts stipulate the types of services and articulate how
fers will be incurred and calculated, Service fee for design and development of technology-hased
producks are recognised owver the pericd of satisfaction of relative performance obligation i.e.
development of product.

The services of ane-time integration, setup, and technology fee, stc, are gensrally billed Lo Lhe
customers upfrant. However, the underlying abligaticn to keep up and run the platform continues for
the entire period of the contract with customer, and the pattern of henefits to the custemer from such
seryices rendered is generally even, throughout the period of contract. Revenue against such upfront
technology platform service fee is recognized on a straight-ling basis over a peried {i.e. over the
contractual term],

Income from advertisement/sale of space:

Revenue from sale of advertisement space is recognised, on satisfaction of associated performance
obligation i.e. as and when the relevant advertisement is displayed on the application.

Contract balance
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (e,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due}, Refer to accounting
policies of financial assats in section 1} Financial instruments.,

Contract iabilities

A contract liability is Lhe ohligation to transfer gqoods or services Lo a customear for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, 1f a customer
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment s due (whichever is earlier). The Group
racognises contract Eakility for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance ohligations
and reports these amounts as "Deferred revenus” or "Advance from customers” in the balance sheet,
Provisions for customer incentives are also reparted as contract lizbilities.

c) Leases

The Group’s leased assets primarily consist of leases for office space, The Group assesses whather a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
comveys Che right to control the use of an identified assat for a period of time in exchange far
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asssL,
the Group assesses whether; (i) the contract invalves the use of an identified asset (i) the Group has

cubctanti g & pcoRomic-bens o a0

(i) the Group has the dght to direct the use of the asset,




ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED
{formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group reccgnizes a right-of-use assel ("ROUY) and a
corresponding lease liskility for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and |ow valua leases. For these shart-term and low
valug leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense an a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lzase term. ROU assers and lease liabilities includes periods coverad by extension options when it is
reascnably certain halk they will be exercised and includes pericds coversd by termination cptions
whean it iz reasonably cartain that they will not be exercised,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which camprises the initial ameount of the lease
liatility adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease Incentives. They are subsequently measured st cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, Righl-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commeancemeant date an a straight-line hasis over the shorker of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by Lhe end

“of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflect that the Group exercise 2 purchasa
opticn. The Group applies Ind AS 26 to determine whether 2 ROU asset is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment less as described In the accounting policy below an “Impairment of non-
financial assekts”,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost al the present value of the future |ease
paymants that are not paid at the commencernent date, The lease paymants are discounted using the
interest rate implicit 0 the lease or, If not readily determinable, using the Group's incremental
borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with & correspending adjustrment to the related right
of use asset {or in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero) if the Group changes its assessment if whather it will exercise an sxtension or a lermination or
a purchase option.

The interest cost on lease liability {computed using effective interast methad), is expensed in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Group sccounts for sach lease component within the contract as a lease separately from noh-
lease components of the contract in accordance with Ind AS 116 and allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease componant an the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease componeant
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease componaents.

The Group has elected to account for all COVID-19-related rent concession that meets all of the
following conditions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modification:

(4] the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the leasa that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change.

(b} any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due cn or before the 31 March
2072,

(¢} there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Leass liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymeants
have been classified as financing cash Mows,

d} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
halances {with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investmeants that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2} Foreign currency transactions and translations

The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupess which represents the currency of the primary
pronomic environment in which it operates,

Transactions in currencies other than the Group's functional currency (forgign currencies) are
recognised atb the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions, At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using mean
mxchange rate pravailing on the last day of the reperting period. Non-monetary assets and labilities
that are measured at fair valug in a foreign currency are translatad into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determinad. Mon-monetary assets and ligbilities that are
measured based on historical cost inoa foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

Treatment of exchange difarencas

Exchangs differsnces on monstary items are recognised in the Profit or Loss in the period in which
they arise.

f} Employee benefits

Employes bensfits include provident fund, employees state insurance scheme, gratuity, compensated
absences and other incentives ta emplayees.

Post-amplovment and termination benafit costs

Payments tao defined contribution benefit plans {i.e. provident fund and employea state insurance
schame) ara recognised as an expense when employess have renderad service entitling them to the
contributions,

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the 2nd of =2ach annual reporting periad.
Remeasurement, camprises actuarial gaing and losses which s reflected immediately in the balance
sheel with a charge or credit recegnised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
coour. Remeasuremeant recognised in other comprehaensive incoms is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and Is not reclassified to profit or loss, Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
perod of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning
of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as
fallows:

o service cost {including current sarvice cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses
an curtailments and settlements);

+« netinterest expense or income; and

«  remeasurement

Short-term and octher long-term emploves benefits

A liability is recognised for shart-term employee banefits accruing to employees in respect of salarias,
annual leave and sick leave, performance incentives ete, In the period the related service is rendered
ak the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchanges for that service,

Liabilitizs recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next bwelve months, is treated as short-
term amplovee hanefit.

The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects o
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reparting date,

term employes benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.
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Actuarial gainfloss are immediately taken o the statement of profit and loss and are nol deferrsd,
The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have
an unconditionzl right to defer its settlement for bwelve months after the reperting date.

g) Share-based payments

Employees of the Group alse recelve ramuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions
under Group’s Employvee stock option plan (ES0P)-2014,

Equity-settled transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employveess is
recognised as an employes expense, with a carresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
emplovaes unconditionally becomes entitled to the awards, The amount recognisad as expesnse is based
of the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expenss s based on the number of awards
that do meet the related service conditions at the vesting date.

h) Taxatian

Income tax expense comprises represents the sum of the tax currently tax payable and deferred tax.
It s recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or ko an
item recognised directly in 2quity or in ather comprehensive incocmesa.

Current tax

The tax currently paysble is based on tzxable profit for the year. Taxable praofit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of [tems of iNcome or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deduckible. The Group's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that hawve enacted ar substantizlly enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The amount of current tax payahble or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expacted to
be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any.

The assessmeant is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Group supported by previous
experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice.

Defarrad tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carryving amaounts of asssts
and liahilities for financal reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tawation
purposes, Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of camied forward tax losses and tax cradits,

Defarrad tax 15 nol recoanised for;

« temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
nat a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time
af Lhe transaction;

= temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associabes and joint arrangements ko
the extent that the Group is akble to contrel the Liming of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reversa in the foreseeable future: and

« taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognisad to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Thersefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group
reccgnises a deferred tax asset only to the extant that it has sufficiant taxable temporary differences
or there is canvincing ather evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be availahle against which such
deferred tax asset ran he realised ., Deferred tax assets — unrecogoisad or recognised, are revieswed at

each reporting date and are recognised, reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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Deferrad Lax is measured at the tax rates that ars expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

The measurgment of defarred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferrad tax assets and lizkilities are offset if there is a legally enfarceable right to affset current tax

lighilities and assets, and they relate to income @xes levied by the same tax authority on the same

taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets
. on a net basis ar their tax assets and liahilities will be realized simultansously.

i} Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment are stated in the kalance sheet at cost less accumulared depraciation
and accumulated Impalrment [osses, When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates then separately based on theair specific
useful lives.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, amy directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition far its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site cn which it is located. The cost of a salf-
constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located,
Cost includes, for qualifying assets, horrowing costs capltalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
aquipment when complaeted and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other properly assats, commeances when the assels are ready for their intendead use.

Denreciation and amortisation

Depreciation is provided oh the written down value method, The estimated useful life of sach assel
as prascribed under Scheduls 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on technical assessment of
internal experts (after considering the expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear,
technical and commercial obsolescence and understanding of past practices and general industry
experiencel are as depicted below:

Assets cniegnryr o | Estimated useful lifa |
Computers 3 Years
Furniture & fixtures 13 Years
Office aguipmeant & Years
Leasehold improvements & ¥ears
| Server.& Network Equipment & Years

Deprecation an additicn to the property, plant and equipment is provided on pra rata hasis from the
date the assets are acquired/ installed. Deprecation on saled deduction of plant, property and
eruipment assets s provided for upto the date of sale and deduction.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depraciation method are reviewad at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective hasis,

An itermn of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued wse of the asset. The gain ar lass arising on tha
disposal ar retirement of an asset is determined as the differance between the sales procesds and the

CETTYITICY S TToITTL 4 HTe gsser and s rELUQHIbELi frprofitorfoss
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i1 Intanagible assets

Intangible assets with finite wseful lives that are acguired separately are carried at cost less
accurmulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amartisation is recagnised on
a straight-line basis owver their estimated useful lives determined based on technical assessment of
internal experts, The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewsd at the end of each
reporking period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Assets category Estimated useful life |

Computer scftware | 5 Years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expacted
from use of disposal. Gaing or losses arising from derecognition of an intanoible asset, measurad as
the difference betwesn the nst disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

k) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability ar equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially
recognisad when they are orlginated, All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when 8 Group becomes a party to the contractual provisicns of the instruments.

Financial assels {unless it s a Crade receivahle without a significant financing companesnt) and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and finandial lizkilities {other than financial assets and financial
liakbilities at fair value throeugh profit ar loss are addead to or deductad from the fair value of the financial
assels or financial liakbilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit ar
loss are recognised immediately in profit or [oss. A trade recelvable without a significant financing
component 15 Initally measured at the transaction price.

Financial assefs
Al recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of fnanciad instrumants
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categaories:
= Financial asset at amortised cost
+ Debt instruments at fair value through cther comprehensive income (FYVTOCT)
«  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

[FWTPL)
«  Equity instruments measured at fair value through ather comprehansive income (FYTOCT)

A financial asset that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost
{except for financial asset that are designated as at fair wvalue through profit or loss on initial
recocgnition):

s Lhe asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to oollect
contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise an specified dates to cash flaws that are
solely paymeants of principal and interast an the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that mest the following conditions are subsequently measurad at fair value through
other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition):
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s the asset |5 held within a business model whose chjective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

v the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates ta cash Mows that are
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investmeant that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
alect to present subsaquent changes in tha investment's fair value in OCL This election is mades an an
investmenk-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at Debt instruments that do not meet the amartised
cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see abowve) are measurad at FVTPL, In addition, debt instruments
financial assets that meet the amaortised cost criteria or the FYTOCT criteria may irrevocably be bot
are designated as at FMTPL are measured at FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significanty reduces an
acoounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Subsequent measuramant af fnancial instruments

|
Financial assets at FYTPL | These assets are subseguently measured at Falr value, Mel
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recegnised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost  These assets are subsequantly measured ab amaortised cost
using the effective Interest method, The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairmeant are recognised in
profit or loss, Any gain ar foss on derecognition is recognised
In profit or loss,

Debt instrurments at FYTOCT These assets are subseguently measured at fair walue.
Interest income under the effective interest method, forgign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss, Other net gains and losses are recocgnised in
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl
are reclassified to profit or loss,

Equity instruments at FVTOCT These assets are subsequently measursd st fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents 2 recovery of part of the cost of
the Investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in
CQCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss,

Impairmeant of financial asseats

The Group applies the expected credit loss moedel for recognising impalement loss on financial assets
measured at amaortized cost, debt instruments, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset and financial guarantees not designated as at FYTPFL. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument,

The Group always recognises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables. The expectad
credit losses on these financial assets are estimatad using & provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for Factars Lhat are specific Lo the debtors, gensral economic
coenditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriato.

For measurement of loss allowance in case of financial guarantee contracts, the Group recognises
lifetirne ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recagnition. Howeaver,

if the credit risk an the financial instrument has net ingreasad significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrurmesnt at an armowent equal to 12-month ECL.
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Litetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-meanth ECL represents the partion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to resull from default events on a financial instrumesnt that are possibile within
12 months after the reporting date,

(1) Significant fncreases in credit risk

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recaognition of a2 financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changss
in the risk that the specified dehtor will default an the contract, In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and gualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-lcoking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The Group applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial guarantes contracts, The
underlying receivables of debtors migrate through the following three stzges based on the changes in
credit guality since initial recognition,

Skage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where thare has not been a significant increase In cradit risk since initial recoanition
and thakt are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the
prebability of default events occurring within the next 12 meonths is recognized.

Exposuras with davs past due {DPD) less than or equal to 30 days ars classified as stage 1.
Srage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impalrad

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recoanition
but that are not credit impaired, 2 lifetime ECL is recognized. Exposures with DPD equal to 31 days
biut less than or equal to 8% days are classified as stape 2. At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for underlying receivables of debbors since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting data and the date of initial recognition,

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — cradit impaired

Receivable of debtor is assessed as credit impaired when one or mere events that have a detrimeantal
impack on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have cocurred. For receivable of debbors that
have become credit impairad, a lifetime ECL is recognized cn principal outstanding as at pericd end.

Exposures with DPD equal te or more than 90 days are classified as stage 3.

The definition of default far the purpose of determining ECLs has been aligned to the Reserve Bank
of India definition of default, which considers indicators that the deblor s unlikely to pay and 15 no
later than when the exposure is more than 90 days past due,

The measurement of all expected credit [osses for financial guarantes contracts held at the reporting
date are based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts. The measurement of ECL invalves increased complexity and judgement, including
estimaticn of PDs, LGD, a range of unhiased future economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives
and estimation of EAD and assessing significant increasss in credit risk,

Thea Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i1 Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the prabatbility of default, loss given default

{i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is @ default) and the exposure at default, The assassment of

information as desoribed above,
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As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this s represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date: for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includss the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn
down in the future by default date determined basad on historical trend, the Group's understanding
of the specific future financing needs of the debtars, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expectad credit loss is estimated as the difference betwaen all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in 2accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective intorest rate.

For a financial quarantee contrack, as the Group is reguired to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtar in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected
loss allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
amy amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party,

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amaount equal ta lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that tha conditions
for lifelime ECL are no lenger met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amaount equal to 12-
maonth ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which the simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVYTOCI, for which the |loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate compensnt of eguity
whersin fair value changes are accumulated, and does nat reduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the balance sheest.

Derecognition of foancial assels

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, ar when It transfers the financial asset and substantizlly all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party or when the Group neither transfars nor retaing substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not rekain control of the financial asset, If the Group neither
transfars nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises L5 retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of @ transferred financial asser, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralisad horrowing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the assel's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receiveble and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognisad in other comprehensive income and accumulated in aguity is recognised in profit ar
loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that
financial assat.

- Financial iabifities and equily instrunrenis
Classification as debt or cguity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial llahilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrement.

Equity instruments

An eguity instrument is any contract that avidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Financial liabilities

& financial liability is any liability that is:

1a) a contractual cbligation:

(i} ko deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

(i} to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the entity; or

(b} a contract thal will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

(i1 & non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the
entity s own equity Instrumaents; or

(i1 a darivative that will or may be settled ather than by the exchange of a fived ameount of cazh or
another financial asset for a fived number of the entity’s own eguity instruments.

All financial liabilities are subsequenthy measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTRL.

Financial iabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FWTPL when the financial liability is either contingent
consideration recegnised by the Group as an acquirer in a husiness comhbination to which Ind AS 103
applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FYTPL.

Financial liabilities at FWTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or lossas arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.,

Financial fabilitiss spbsequently measured b amartisad cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost ab the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the affective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalized as part of costs of 8 qualifying assel is includad in the "Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating inberest expense owver the relevant period, The effective Interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or recelved that
form an inkegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial Hakility, or {where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net
carrying amaunt on initial recognition.

Financial quarantee contract liabilities

A financial guarantes contract is a contract that requirss the issuer to make specified payments o
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when dus
in accardance with the terms of a debl instrumeant,

Financial guarantes contract llabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfar of an asser, are measured subsequently at the higher of;

« the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 (see section of
impairment of financial assets above); and

« the amount recognised initially less, where appropriate, cumulative amartisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies set out abowve.

Although the fee income from financial guarantes contracts s recognised in accordance with the
principles of Tnd AS 115, the financial guarantes contract is in the scope of Ind AS 109 and the fea
income from it is not revenye from contracts with customers, The Group presents the fee income from
financial guarantees as part of revenue from share in interest income.
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Derecognition of finandial Yabilities

The Group derecognisss financial liabllities when, and only when, the Groups obligations aro
discharged, cancelled or have expirad, An exchange between with a lendsr of debl instrumeants with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the ariginal financial liability and
the recognition of & new linancial Hahility, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability (whether attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for
as an extinguishmeant of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial lizbility.
The difference betwsen the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and  the
consideration paid and pavable is recognised in profit or loss,

Interest income

For zll financial assats measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interzst rate {EIR). EIR is the rata thal exactly discounts Lhe estimated futere cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrerment or & shorter penod, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amaount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability, When
calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument but doegs not consider the expected credit losses, Interest income is included
in other income in the staterment of profit and loss.

17 Provisions and Contingent liabilities

p S

Provisions are recognised when the Group has 2 present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that abligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows {representing The amount recocgnised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration expenditure required to settle the present cbligation at the reporting date) at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrcunding the obligation. Whare a
provision is measurad using the cash flows estimated to sattle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time wvalue of money is
material)l, The unwinding of the discount is recognissd as finance cost. Expectad future operating
losses are not provided for,

i it fiabiliEs

A contingsnt liability is possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence of non-occurrence of cne or mare uncertain future events beyond the
contral of the Group or & present chiigation that is not recognised because it s not prebable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is 2 liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably,

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the  Consclidated
Financial Statements.

m} Impairment of non = financials assets

At the end of each reporting perod, the Group reviews tha carrving amounts of its assets to determing
whether there is any indication that those assets hawve suffered an impairment loss, If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
Lhe impairment loss (IF anyy, For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash
inflows are grouped together inko cash-generating units, Each cash-genesrating unil represents the
srmallest group of assets that generaktes caszh inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or cash-generating units. When a reasonahble and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise thay
are allocated to the smallesk group of cash-generating units For which a reasonahle and consistent
allaratinm bacis can be identified
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Recowverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and valus in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimatesd future cash flows are discountad to their present value using & pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valua of money and the risks
specific to the asset {or cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assat (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable
amount, An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impalrment loss subsequeantly reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 2 cash-
generating unit) is increased Lo the revised estimate of its recoverable amaount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been detarmined
had no impalrment 105 been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss Is recognisad immediately in profit or loss.

n) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chisf operating decision maker, The Group has identified Consumer payments, Fintech and Payment
Galeway as Its oparating segments. Consumer payment segment includes merchant fee collected from
a merchant when a user purchases goods or services from merchant and pays via Mobikwik Wallet.
Further, it also includes convenience fees collected from users In certain cateqaries. Fintech segment
includes our Digital Financial Services offerings - MobikKwik Zip {which is our Magship 15-day Digital
Finanoal Services product), Zip EMI {which is a longer tenure credit product) and other credit products,
It alse includes revenus from fintech preducts and platforms services specifically designed to drive our
credit business and amounts received from online promotions on such platforms, Zip product includes
revenue in the form of a) Merchant fee collected from a merchant when a user pays with Zip aon a
merchant, b) one tima 2ip activation fee collectad from a user and c) late fees cellected from those
users who repay their Zip dus amount after the due date. Payment gateway segment includss
merchant fee collected from e-Commerce merchants {websiles/apps) for enabling them ta colleck
payments from their users using multiple payment options including debit and credit cards, wallats,
unifiad payments interface (UPL) and net banking.

The Group prepares its seqment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and prasenting the  Censolidated Financial Statements of the Group as 4 whole, Segment
revenus and segment expensas have been dentified (o seaments based an their relationship to the
operating activities of the seament. Assets and labilities are used interchangeably between segments
and hanca not allocated ko any segment.,

Revenus and expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and are not sllocable to segments an
reasonable basis have been included under unallocated revenue or expenses.

@) Earnings per share

Baslc earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted samings per share, the nel profit or loss far the period
attributahle to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares oulstanding during
the perlod are adjusted for the effects of all potential equity shares except where the resulls are anti-
dilutive,

p) Measurement of EBITDA

Az permittad by the Guidance Mote on Division I — Ind AS Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013,
the Group has elected Lo present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
as a separate ling item on the face of the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/{loss) from continuing operatiens, In its measurement, the
Company does not include deprecigtion and amortization expense, finance costs, exceptional tems
and Lax expense. Finance costs comprise interest expense on: borrowings, bank overdrall, lease

liahility and late payment of statutory dues,
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q) Adoption of new accounting principles

Onerous contracts = cost of fulfilling a contract {amendment to Ind AS 37 - Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets)

The amendment clarified that the 'costs of fulfilling & contract” comprise both the Incremental costs
and allocation of other direct costs. The Campany has adopted this amendment effective 1 April 2022
and the adoption did not have any materal impact on its financial statemants.

r} Recently issued accounting pronocuncements

On 21 March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs [(MCA), notified Companies (Indian Acoounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 affective from 1 Aprll 2023, Following are the key amended
provisions which may have an impact an the financial staterments of the Company;

Disclosure of accounting policies {amendments to Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements)

The amendments intend to assist in deciding which accounting policies to disclose in the financial
statements. The amendments to Ind AS 1 require entities to disclose their material accounting policies
rather than their significant accounting policies, The amendments provide guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The Company doess not expect this
amendment to have any signiflcant impact in its financial statements,

Definition of accounting estimate {amendments to Ind AS 8§ - Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errars)

The amendments distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of
a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under
the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetzry amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurament uncertainty®, Entities dewvelop accounting estimates if accounting policies
require items in financial statements to be measured in @ way that involves measurement uncertainty,
Tha Company does not expect this amendment to hawve any significant impact in its financial
statements.

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (amendments
to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes)

The amendments spacify how to account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases. The
amendments clarify that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting kemporary differences and
financial statemants should reflect the future tax impacts of thase transactions through recognizing
deferred tax, The Company s evaluating the impacl of this ameandment, If any, in its financial
statements.

Other amendments included in the notification do not have any significant impact cn the financal
statoments,

. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of  Consolidated Finangial Statements in conformity with Ind AS reguires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
income, expenses, asseks and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reparting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledoe of current
evenls and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates caould result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future perlods.
Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised i the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods,
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Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's acceunting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the  Cansolidated
Financial Statements:

a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Tha Group applied judgamants that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revernue from contracts with customers, such as identifving performance abligations, wherein, the
Group provides multiple services as part of the arrangement, The Group allocated the portion of the
transaction price o services hasis on its relative standalone prices.

Before including any ameount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Group considers
whether the ameunt of varable consideration is constrainad., The Group determined that the estimates
of varlable consideration are not constrainad based an its histarical experience, husiness forecast and
the current economic conditicns. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will he
resclved within a shart time frame.

b) Determining lease term

The Group determines the lzase term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods coversd by an option to extend the lease i it s reasonably certaln to be exarclsed, or any
periods covered by an aption to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not o be exercised, The
Group has somea properly lease arrangemeants with its vendors that include option to terminate the
contract by either party at any time by giving advance notice or by the Group as per Its discretion.
The Group applied judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the termination
aption. It considerad all the factars that create economic incentive for the Group to continue with lease
or terminate including alternatives available for the office lease, use of underlving property, leasehald
improvements made and accordingly determined lease term.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
azsumpticns and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, howewver, may change due to
rmarket changes or circumstances arising that are beyvond the contral of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in Ehe assumpticns when they occur.

a) Taxes

Deferred taw assets are recognised for unused fax losses to the gxtent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability
the Group considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the
same taxation authority and the same taxabla entity, which will result in taxable amounts against
which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they expire, Significant
management assumptions are reguired to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognisad, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning stralegiss.

The Group has tax business losses and unabsorbed depreciation carried forward amounting to INR
2,012.93 million {31 March 2022: INR §,803.13 millicn]). The Group does not expect sufficient future
taxable profit against which such tax losses can be vtilised, On this basis, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets on these carried forward tax losses, Refer Mote 27 Tor further delails,

b} Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefit)

The cost of the defined beneafit qr'a'-:ulw plan and the plesent value of fhe u;|r-E|tmt5-r chbligaticn are

U'::L':I IIIIII::LI TSI 2] Tt - ]||||..|L||_|||."'\,I
that may differ from actual develupments in 'EI'IE future, These include Lhe determination ol’ the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
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its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions.
All assumptions are revigwead at each reporting date.

The parameater most subxject to change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the managemeant considers the interast rates of government honds
In currencles consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

Tha mortality rale are current best estimates of the expected mortalicy rates of plan members, both
during and after employment, Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates, seniority, promotion and cther relevant factors, such as supply and demand in
the employment market, Refer Note 28 for further details.

c} Useful life of assets of Property, Plant and Equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s
expacted useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life, The useful lives and residual
values of Group's assets are determined by management at the tims the asset is acguired and
reviewsad at enach financial year end. Refer Note 4 for further details.

d) Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determing the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate ("IBRY) to measure [zase liabilities, The 18R 15 the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar securiby, the funds necessary
o abtain an assel of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environmenk, The
IBR thersfore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay', which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when they nead to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease, The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when gvailable and is required to make certain entity-specific estimatas (such as stand-alone credit
rating ). Refer Nobe 42 for further details.

e) Calculation of loss allowance

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasocnable and supportable forward-lacking information, which
is hazed on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers
will affect each other,

Loss given default is an estirmate of the loss arising on defaull. 1t is basad on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect Lo recelve,

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of
the likelihoad of default owver & given time horizan, the calculaktion of which includes historical data,
assumplions and expectations of future conditions.

Also refer to nota 33,
f) Fair value of eguity-settled share-hased transaction

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
alzso requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expectad life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.
The Group megsures the fair value of equity=satlled Lransactions with employees at the grant date
using Black-Scholes madel. The assumptions for estimating fair value for share-hased paymeant
transactions are disclosed in Note 25.
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5 0Other intangible assets

Software Total
Cost
As at 1 April 2021 .32 0.32
Additicns s =
As at 31 March 2022 .32 0.32
Additicns = =
As at 31 March 2023 0.32 E!§1
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2021 0.32 032
Amortisation for the year = -
As at 21 March 2022 0.32 0.32
Amncrtisation for the vear - =
As at 31 March 2023 0.32 0,32

Carrying amount
A= at 31 March 2022 - =
As at 31 March 2023 o =
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6 Goodwill
Total

Cost
As at 31 March 2022 48.63
As at 31 March 2023 48.63
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 31 March 2022 48.63
As at 31 March 2023 48.63
Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2022 -

A= at 31 March 2023 =

Hote:

1 During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had acquired Harvest Fintech Private Limited resulting inte goodwill of
MR 48683 millicn. Goodwill is tested for impalement annually st each reporting date ie. 31 March. Management
detarmines the recoverable amount of goodwill based an value in use calculations of expected benefits over foreszeable
future,

As at 31 March 2020, due to certain changes in business and economic conditions, management belisves that the expecied
benefits will take much longer Lo accrue than anticipated as on 31 March 2019, The recoverable amount was brasad on s
value in use, determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the continuing use. The carrying
amount was determined ta he higher than its recoverable amount, accordingly, an impairment loss of [NE 48 63 was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2020,
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Az at AR at
31 March 2023 31 March 20232

Ma) Investment

Non-currenk

Unguated investments (fully paid)

Invastmeant in other cquity instruments at Fair value through Other comprebhensive income {FYTOLTY
Maticnal Faymenk Corporalian of Indiz ("HPIIM 16.21 1027
(5,232 (31 Mancn 2022 6,152 equity shares of [NR 1,250/~ each) [refor note 1 heloe ) d

16,21 _ 10,37

Aggregate amount of un-guoted investments 16.21 10,37

Mobas:

1, The Investmeart in other enquity instruments are aos held For trading. Insbead, tese 2e neld for mediom to bong-term strateglc purpaeses, Accordingly, the Group bas elecked b
designale this investment In equity Insourments a5 ot BV TOET a5 they el that recognsing sharl-term flactuations in this Irvastmerts’ fair value in proft o loss wauld nat be
tert will e Sioup's skrategy of halding these fnvestment for long-term pumnoses and realising their perfoomianees gabential in the leag oun. Fefer aabe 30 for further

Az at As ak
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
b1 Loans {measured at amortised cosk}
Unsacured, cradit impaired .
Lo Peler nole 1 belaw) 1.01 1.4d1
Less: Frovision for doabaful balanoas s _ [1.01] i1.01)
Total loans - ~

Motes:
1. It represents loan given to Pratchaln Technologres Frivate Limited (relabed pacty B 51 March 2020] which cairies inberest rabe of 15 % pae and repayable on demand,

2. The Tair walue of loans cainied at amartized cost 1s disdosed 10 note 30

F(c) Other financial assets {measured at amortsed costh A3 at As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Mon=currant
Unsecured, considerad good unless stated oktharwise
Security depasits L7.66 ) 29.04

Bank decesils with remalning matarive for more than tasbva manths (refer aake 100 . s 14,75
17.66 41.7%
Current
Unsocured, considered good unless stated atherwhise
amaunt recoverable From payment gatesay banks 7349 £15.40
Aenounl recoverabile Hom gsars and busingss oactners 349.11 1.552.83
Interest accrued on deposits f2,48 35,35
Shars issue expenses Rafe nole 49 5.23 15.30
Sacurity deposits 211 05
ither recoverables 39.23 35,32
EB3s.e0 000 ZI60.65
uUnsecured, considered doubkful
funount recoverable from savment nateway banks 2,31 2.3L
Security depasits %.11 7
Receivable Mrom users (Reter note 1 below and noke 571 142.13 9b.35
Lesz: aflowsrce for doubtful halanoes {151.57) {O7.8%)
£35,90 2.266.65
Tatal other financial assets B53.56 2,308.44
Motas:

1. Incledes amounts recalvable from usars on acoount af a faud in IMPS transactons in year ended 31 Maich 2018, Pending collection of these amounts, the amounts hove Sean
fully pravided far in the books of accourt. The Company 15 0 the process af recovering the ameonts, The total amocet of transter through the above mode was MR 200,24
million, nul of which INA 105,88 million has been recowver ed HH date,
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3 Other assets As ak As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Mon-current
Unsecurad, considered good unless otherwize stated
Schvanies 1o suppliens (Reler nate 1 below 1.326.99 1,354,597
fenaunt pald under probest 10.09 1.63
Propaid oxpennes 1.01 470
Balarces with government authorities 1.40 1.40
Total 1.339.49 1,360.93
Current
Unsecured, considarad good unlass othensrize stated
Adwanoe ko owendars {Agoregatocs? 120,488
Adwvance Lo suzoliers ZB.B5
Advance to emploees 2,62
Halaneoes with govarnment autharitiss (GET 110.11
Prepaid expenses 28.12
advance pard to customers o
Current
Unsecured, considerad doubtiul
Advance to vendors (aaqaranators) 2.05 205
Advance to sunplicr T 276
Aclwaross b emolovees .03 .03
salances with gowvernrment autharities 7.51 7.51
Lesis: Prewision for doubtful advances (12.33) {12,357
Tatal 295,96 191,36
Maokes:

1, [t represents an advance made as a part of 2nadvertising and media usage agresment witn e suppliees, This will be adjusted with the valie of services availed by the

Eaolding Company froom such suppdiers in e Tulure.

9  Trade recelvables As at A5 Ak
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsacurad, considered good unless stated otherwise
Trace receivables FOa.23 205,14
_e=g allowance for doubtful debes {5,700 0750
Tatal 758,53 294,39
Maobas:

a7 Trade receivahlas are non-interest baarieg and the aversge oredit perod 15 betvioon O ko 30 days.

i) The Growp Blways measuies the loss allowance for rade seopvahles 4t snamoent equal Lo lifetine expected oredit loss [2CL), The Company has wsed @ mactical espedlent
by compubing the expected credit loss allowance for rade recelvables based an o provision matrix ander simplified appreach, The provision matnx takes int account hisloncal
cradis loss experienes and adjusten] for foreard-locking inforrmation, The expectes arodt loss allowances is based on Lhe ageing of the days the recewahles are due. Based on
intermnal assessrrens which I drven by the historical experience and current tacts svallzble In relatlon f default and delays in collection thereof, the crecit risk far these trade
receiveles s considerad low,

<} The Sroup weites off a trade recervatie when there is infurmiztion indicating that the castomer 15 in severe financizl difficulzy ard there is oo realistic prozpect of recavery, o.0.
wtten Lhe customer has besn placed under lquidation or has erteed nlo Baakrootoy proceedings,

Thes Tallwing Lable detzils the risy proflle of rede rommivablns hased an B Group's provision matid As the Group's hiswerical crodic Inss erxperience does not show sigaificanty
difforart loss pestlemns for different custamer sagments, the prosesian for loss allowance based on past due status 12 nob further distinguishes bebween the Graup's dilferent

cushomer segmenks,

Expocted credit loss = Delault Risk Rata (%]

Againg As at Az at

F1 March 2023 31 March 2022
Wiknin the cradic perod 0.00%: 0.00%
1-30 daws past dis L0002 0,00
31-60 davs past dus 0.00% 0, (4%
fal1-40 davs past die I11% 0.56%,
31-1B0 days past due 1.66G%: 2.16%
181-365 davs past dun 5.59% S5.22%
1 - Z wrmrs past dus 42, 38%,: 61.06%
2 - 3 wears pest cue 100.00% 100 %
Cryer 3 yoars L0 % 100.00%:

Expected credit loss - Dalay Risk Rates{%s)

Apgeing As at Az at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Wilhin Lhe cregit oelod 0.00% G0
1-30 davs past due 012% 0.06%
J1-60 days past due Le =Y 0,15
&1-40 devs past due DT [t [t
S1-180 davs pasl dus 1,30 % 0.73%
1EL-365 davs past due 2.75% 1,7 8%
1 - 2 wears pask due #5318 £.58%
Z - 3 yezis pask due D.0D%: Q.00 %
negr 3 ovedars 10.00% D.00%:
HMoventait-in-the-erpected-credit-loas-aHewanes Asak &LE.ak

31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Balance st beninming of the vear 075 5.7
Mewement in expacted cradit loss 2llewance on trade reczivablos 4.95 (5.02]
Balance gt end of the year 5.70 0,75




DMNE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly Knowm a5 DNE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED}

Motes to the consclidated financial statemants for the year ended 31 Manch 2023

LAmoun

10

n IHE rllhions, unless othersise slalad]

Trade receivables ageing schadula
Az at 31 March 2023 - —
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from dus dabe of payment

Mot due Less than & months = 1=-2 yoars 2-3 years Mare than Total

& menths 1 vegr 3years -

Lirgtmputed srade receivablas - consicered BG83 A9.58 10,44 .20 G0k 0.03 54,23
oo —
As at 31 March 3033
Particulars Outstanding for Tollowing perieds fram due date of payment

ot dua | LE2E than & monkths = 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than Tatal

G months 1 wear 3 wears S

dndisputed trade receivables - cansidereg 164,00 241 AZ.17 - D 0.10 205,74
lgged
Cash and cash equivalants As at As at

Cash on hand®*
Dalance with bark
- 2N current aCcounts

Total cash and cash equivalents

Motas

Ietal cash andd casl eyuivalenls
Lesst Bank everdrefc (refer noke 131

Cash balanca for the purposes of consolidated statem ent of cash flows

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Cenosits with

- Remaining maturity for less than twelve months=
- Rerraining maturity for mare than teelee manths =

Less: @mount disclosed under non current finanrial nssets

Halanzes with banks:
In Modal account™ =
In Escrow Accounkeess

Total

= [rcludes coash on hand of INE ZED, rounded off to "0" an conwersion bo THRC millian
=% These depasits indedes en marked bank deposits of TNR 1, 16186 miltion 131 March 2022 © (MR 683,47 millinn],
=3 hg Group uses the Hodal account bo receive money when wallet 15 vsed as payment gatemesy for settlensent of the transactions with the merchants and also Lo receise

meney when cayment gateway s used far payments Foo setllement of the transactions with the merchants.

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Q.00 (AN IT]
53678 _ATTAT
Q3678 477,459
936. 7R 470,44
{130,300 vl 214,051
[293.54) (736,571
1,212.50 1.122.08
12.75
1.212.50 1.154.832
- (12.75%
1,212 50 1 142.08
6h, 56 448,52
140308 Friag
____ 2.680,15 3 36405

= ed The mmouant in escrow secount incleoes a balarce In arcqunt of IMR A5 million bearing inlerest rgte of 4% poa (11 March 2072 @ 14R 50 Million bearing Inberest rate of S%

Pl
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OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly known 55 ONE MOBIEWIK 5YSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Motes to the consolidated financial stateamants for tha year ended 31 March 20323

(armaninns i IR ernillion s, wiless olberwise stated)
As at As at
P | 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
SFFOWINGS
Mon-current
Secured, at amortized cost
Man-corvertible dehertures frefer note 1 helove) 492,41 -
cemns Currenl malurily of non-canvertizle debertures 267 .45] -
234,36 -
Currant
Unsecured, at amortised cost :
Term lean fram fnanclal (rstiubor (refer note 3 balow) 2 05,08
= 95.08
Secured, at amortised cost
Fram hanks
Bank averdrall {refer nole 2 below)] 1,230.32 1.21+.08
Term lgan {refer rote 2 below) 0.0 20000
Current matunity of pon-convertible detaentures Ak -
1697.77 1p414.06
Total L9777 _ 150814
Mokes:

14

1. The Molding Company had raised INR 550 million through 15502 of detenturss [Mon-oonvertizla) during the year ended 31 Harch 2023, These dobentures are secured by lirst
pari passu charge rreabed on preseat and fulure lxed and cdreent & non cusrent assets uncalled share cacitsl and current and feture cash flows of the Halding Comeoany. Celails
of g Intal debenuter halders are menooned helow -

Face Value Mo of Repayment
Fiamet Mamy INR millions | Debentures | | Instafiment sy s bl sl
kol Coapital Private Limited = .50 Zo| 25 | 14,00 14.50% 350.00
Blzckeoil Ingia Credit Fund .50 200 25 14.00% 149,307 106,00
arnatinn Furd 1 _ 1.00] T 18 16,00 17510 10400

20 Tn enne of Hodding Compary, e Sank ovesgialls and shoit tsem loan 1s securad oy way of first pard passu charge an all the present and future murrent assets (eicluding Lhe
escrow salances], praperky plant and moqe preents and carnies inleresk rale of 11.26% poa. la bank overdialt and 10,70% for short teem losn from a%15 Hank, The short tom
lean Iz repsyvable on damand,

Ther bank owverdrafls is secored by way of st pari passa charge on all the present and future current assets (ecduding the ascrow halanoes] carnos interesk rate of 11.56% pa.
for 1C1CE Bank,

The bany overdrafts I secured by way of first pan passe charge an fixed deposit of INR 300 millian carries interest rate of 7.35% pa. Mo Stale Bank of India.

In case of Subsidiary Comgany (200K EPAYMENTS SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED), the Bank owerdratts avalled from 12101 Bank Umaed 15 sacured by way af charge on the stack,
baok dohis, fixed degasits, ather receivables and persoral guarantes of direcbors. This has besn paid off on 31 August 2022 and Iks charge created has alsa been relonsed,

The unutilized sanctlon Imits for cank overdrafts -

| Mature of Facility Amount Amount
|Bank Name 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[1H15 Bank 5] Bark owordrafs - LS 202.93] z.07
|\ SBT Bank e Bznk gvordrafts 0.3g -
\ICICI Bank Gk oward-alis 1.27 = 2.8

A. The Halding Compary had raisad INR 163 rmillion from OM1 Fnarce Srivats limeeed duneg the pear ended 37 March 2022 25 2 Line of Cresdit ab be inleiest rale of 15,00%
frea. with the validily of 1 ez The loan has t2en paid off on 15 Ocoober 2022,

4. The Infarmation required by the banks and finanoal mstibusons s pee sanckion letber for delails on current assels ander Fen against the barrowings ras been orovided by tha
Group. The informatian which have ceen subrrtbed oy the Group to banks and finanaazl institutions were in agreement with the books of socounks.

Az at Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables
- Tokal autstanding duss af micrm erterpeizes and small erterprses [Refer nole 43) 94,26 55,13
= Taotal autstanding duss oF credibors alher han micro enlerprises and =mall enterprises 1,084.07 GOZ. 51
1,178.32 747.94

Trade payables aging schedula

Az at 31 March 2023

Cut=tanding for following periods fromn due date of payment
e Mot due e 1-2 years || 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
articulars yaar T
Ungizpubed dues - H5¥E 7i0d 3274 a.0a [ 0.10 0,30 04, i
Lretisputed dues - Qthers e ] EIERE 145 48 E B, BE .00 107263
Dizzuled duas - MEME = = =] = e =
Diszuted dues - Sthers 2321 - = - 2,51 a1 11,45

Az at 31 March 2022

_ Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Mot Less than 1 P i e
Parbiculars oo e E-Togears I-Fopars
Undisputed dues - MSHE 49.13 | 5.60 _4.1d 0,01
Lnehsputed dues - Olhars EXE A E] A, i A8 1319
Disputed duss - MaME - - = =

Disipuites] dues - Clhers ] - - ; 251 | 8,07




OME MOETKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly knowrn s OME MOBIKWIK S5YSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Maokcs to the consolidabed financial statemeants for tha year ended 31 March 2023

QArounts 17 IR millens, unless otheow se statel)

15

16

17

1B

15

pther financial liabilities

Mon=current
Senuriby deposils

Current

Interest aoccraed o0 Borroeings

Acdvance fram Francing partner

Securlty deposits

aschenees froen wallel usars jusers balance)™
Financizl guarantes obligation**

Payatle to morchants

Payable to cparalors and 3ggregators

Cthers

Total

As ak
31 March 2023

As ak

© 31 March 2022

0.35 0.35
N - - L 0.35
1,36 0.67

- 1,213.17

.24 .24

974.53 1,235.53

348.16 453,87

233.40 B15.06

104.72 44,03

o E2EY 136,3¢

3 35962 3,725.04

2,299.97 3,735,359

*The user wallel balsres is nel ol of IR 16.01 millllen, which pertaies to the ransactinn exeauted bul heve col been precessed In e system due to payment cyde cat all,

*% For disrlesare oninpuls, Bssumplions and estimatian techninues ssed in measuremaent of impairmen | leas o lnancial auarantze oblination, refer aoke 32

Provizions

Mon-current '

Frovision for amployven onefits
Provision for grabaity*

Total

Current

Pravigion loy gimployee benefits
Prawizion far gratuty*
Prawvision fTar leave enczshmeant

Total ’

=kar details af mavernent in provisien for grabacty, reter note 28,

Contrack liabilities

Currant

Dhalerred revenue
Cusbamaer Incenbves
Brdvarie frorm cusbomer s
Total

Cther liakilides

Current
Statutary remittances
Total

Mon-current tax asset (net)

Adwance tax and @ deducted a1 sourre
Ircome tax payvahle
Total

As at
31 March 2023

A= ak

31 March 2022

204 20.23a
22.04 20.28

B.71 LA
14.68 13.14
21,60 15.06

As at
31 March 2023

AE At
31 March 2022

14.52 24,01
&,03 12,469
226 1.33
23.76 38,63
As at A=z &t

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

115040

115.00

AS ak
31 March 2023

117,53

As at
31 March 2022

233,78
(3543

230,14




OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Motes ta the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
Carnourtks in TRE millizns, unliss abberwiss staled)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year anded
31 March 023

20 Rowvenuec from oporations
Financiol Services 2,850,221 976,57
Payment Servicas Z2,544.48 ra 4., 2us. 08
Tatal revenue from operations 5,394.67 5,265.65
The GEroup derves iLs revanue tom anlrscts with customears Tor the ranster al services over Hme and 21 a goint In time on the Groug s avalleble services product.
A Tinangial services include Mohidwik Zip (which is Nagshie 15-day produal), FTig THT (ehizh s @ langer 1enuee Credit product) ans ethes oredit products, I alsa
irslurles rewanus Trom insarlecs, wealtnlach and ficlech produels, platform sereioes specilinally designad 1o drive credit business and amounts recaived fram onling
pramationg on such plalfaams, Tip produal incades resenae in the fanm ol 2) merchanl Tae golleclad from a mercnant, b cne me Zp 2ctivation fee, and o) laks
fees on account of repayment of Zig due amount aters e due dale.
G Paymenl servicss inciude revesn@ from merchanl feg enllected Trorm s merchant 2od coneenience fees collaclad tram users under cestan categories of sesvices.,
20.1 Disaggregation of revenue based on timing of recognition of revenua:
& Services branslerred sl poink in time 5.378.73 5,23L.07
b Services bransfierred over tirne 15.94 A4, 58
Total revenue from contract with customars - 5,384.67 5, 265.65
0.2 Reconciliation of revenue recognised n statement of profit and logs with contracted price: i
Rewenue as per contracted price 5,414,658 5,787.45
-ess5! Vanable consideration [Incluging considerstion payable to custamer) o {20,011 __§21.81%
5,394.67 5,265.65
20.3 Transaction price allocated to the remaining parformance oblipations:
The following table includes revenue expected to be recagnised in e future relates to perfarmance obligation that ere unsatisfied Jor portelly unsatisfied) at the
reparting date:
Sale of services 23.TE AREF
23.76 38.63
Hote; All the remaining performance obligation are expactad to be recognised within ong vear
20.4 Contract balanccs
The following table providss Information abouk contract Hakziltes from contrack with cuskamers
Ag at Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract liazilities (refer note 171 23.75 EENEE
Significant changes in the contract liakilitics balances during the yoar are as follows:
As at A5 at
Deferred revenus 21 March 2023 31 March 1022
Cpening zalance at the beaginning of the year 24,01 A8, 85
Al fimoent received fram customearns during the year 3.50 o
Less: Revenue recognised dunng the year ! {12.99] (22.64)
Clasing balance at the end of the yvear 14.52 24.01
As at As at
Customer incentive 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening halance at the neginning af tha year 30.47
Addi Created during the vear 12,69
Less: Utllisec durlng the year . B (30,477
Clpsing kalance At e end of the yvear 12.69
As Bt As at
Advance From customer 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance at tha beginning of tha year 1.93 014
Ada: Recelverd during the year b.53 1.8O0
Loss; Revenue recognised doring bhe year i (9,01}
Clasing balance at the end af the vear 246 i 1.93
21 Other Income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income from Srancial sesels messured at amarbised cost
- on 2ank deposits 92,52 69,32
= o gecurly deposily 321 .39
on athars 0. -
Interest on ncome tax refund 14,39 .82
Frmbidiie s T T Bt LS AT
Reversal of impaisqmenl lzas on lrade receivables - 5032
Foreion exchanage oain (netl 0,44 -
Fiszallanzous Incame 0,31 0.32
Tatal 216.49 166.54

* Includes armount for recovenss which bawe already been settled with lending partners.,




OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK STYSTEMS FRIVATE LIMITED)
Notas to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(arnounts In I8 mellions, urless athersise stated)

22

3

24

15

Employes beneflts expense

Salanes, allowance and onus

Gratuity ewpense (reter note 218)

Leave encashment oxpense

Contribuban ko provident end ather funds
Employes slack oplians expense (refer noke 2973
sSkeff welfare expenzes

Total

Finance costs

Trterest sapense on linancial labilities ab amortised cost
- an pverdraft
- an nan cavertible debentures
= an pther borowings
- an lease |abificy {refer note 42)
- athars
Interest expense on deloyed coyment of statutory duss
arhers
Tatal

Depreciation and amortisation axpensa

Deprreciation of properly, plant and cowiprnent {refor note )
Lepraciation on rintt of use assets {refer nobe 427
Tatal

Other expenses

Fayment gataway cost
Business pramatiant
Franchises cost

Adwvertlsement

RAR carstmission &xpense
Lease rent (refar nate 42)
Rates gnd tawes
Communication costs
DOulspiroe Servics Cost

Farcign exchange loss (nel)
Fower and fuel

Marchant related costs

Regair and mainteranoe;
-Flant and machinery

-0y

Sarver ond related cost
Trawvelling and conveyance
Legal and professional Nees
Lending operational expenses
Auditor s remuneration® *
Insurance oxpenses

SOftwWare expenses

THPS Fxnenses

Financial guarantes expenses
Impalrment lass an trede receivatles
Prowisiart Tor doabitfol advanses
I'rowvision for loss on Z1P product [refer noke 417
Ead debts

.!'l._:l'.'d:'l_-;:r; wrilben off

Loss on dispozal of property, plant & agquizrment (net)
Miscallaneous expenses

Total

“Incluces Ussr Incentive expenses amaunting b INR 514,19 million (31 March 2027: MR A56, 94 million)
== Trcludes payrments Loostalulory auditgrs (exclosive of Goods and Service Tix)
For audit

For limited revice
tar reimburserment of expenses

For tha year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

50,39 FALIT
7.5 14,07
A8 4.58

15,51 11.B7
a5,3a 60,0
5.79 4.13
82,25 1,072.46

For the year anded
31 March 2023

For the vear endad
31 March 2022

111.91 67.78
51,73
16.71 22,51
12,60 1E5
2,08
0.01 .14
9,20 16,35
204.24 109,13

For tha year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

19,80 1&.01
23.02 4,08
42,82 20,98

For the year cnded
31 March 20213

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

1,566.52 2,376,75
843,02 1,045,490
23,83 116,892
44,05 [d, 74
18,21 15.97
12,74 12,95
19,26 31468
7417 AZ.40
281.00 105,17
- .40
1.37 0,17
G, 77 74,23
0,41 0,07
13,40 643
14058 105,11
EER 12.34
115.25 190,57
BES.4 176.07
£,46 4,00
5.5 261
7660 15,39
8,50 1347
1095053 90762
4.95 -
56,90 208
- 106.51
13.00 -
10,24 12.37
- n.ags
14,73 20,94
5188.11 5,452.67
4,70 320
- 0,70
0.26 0,10
4.46 .00




OME MOBIKWIK SY5TEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Motes to the consalidaled fMinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
camauntts ia INR millllans, anless al hereise 51aled)

28

Earnings per shara (EP5)
Basc EMS armourts are colculzted by civicing the loss for the weer sttnoutsble to squity holders of the Comzany by the welgnbed average number of equity sharas

and CCOFS pubstanding during the year.

Liluted =1 ore caloulates by doiding the loss for the year stbdzutsble to the equity holders of the Campany by weightas averzoe numbar of equity shares ang

CCPS outstanding during e veer plus the welghted average number of equity shares that would be lssued on canversion ot all the dilubive pobential equity sharss
Inta equity shares, |he following reflects the Income and share data used In the basic and diluted EPS computalions:

Faor the year ended For the year ended
Basic : 31 March 2023 21 March 2022
Loss for basic EPS boing ret loss attributable to oweers of the Company (A [838.14] (1,281.8%)
Weigbbed awerage nember of equity shares and CCPS 0 caloulabng Casic B9S (BY
{refor note 1 below] 5,71,581,521 a,b6,15.253
Basic loss par aquity share [ASE] (IMR) (14.Fid ] (23040
Diluted
Loss far basic EPS he ng ret foss attributable o awaers of e Company (8] [535,14] £1,781.452)
Wwealghtad aversge numzer of equity shares and CCPS In calzulabing Rasic and dilubed EFS (5 5,71,92,579 5,.56,15,263
{rafer note L below]
Crilubed loss per eguity share (A8 (INR) (14.85] (23,07

Tne garnings per share reflecks the impact of sub-division of 1 eguity share vaving Tace valae of 78R 1D cach into 5 egquity shanes baving face value of THR 2 cach
and the bonus shares issuance in lhe ratio of 301 Jrefer noale 4457,

There are pobestial equity shares 25 on 31 Morch 2023 and 31 March 2022 in the form of stock options granted to employees. As these are antl difstive, they are
ignered in the caloslation of difubed carningg {loss) per share and accordingly the diluted ezming/{loss) per share 15 the same as basic eamings/(loss? per shara.




ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Naotes to the consolidated financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 1023
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al

b

€

d]

Income Lax
The ma or componarts ot nonme tax expensey credit] 20 !
Income tax expense/{credit) recognised in consaolidated statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars

Current tax
Current incame Lax for [he year

Deferred tax
Itelating to arginstlon anc reversal of ternparary differences

Total income tax expense
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax as follows:

Particulars

Loss Qefare tax
Accounting loss before income tax

Ta pepense wsing the Company s gz roke of 26.00% (31 Marcn 2022 26,00%))

Effect ¢f t2x rates in other subsidiaries
Clher non-deductible axpenses
temparary differences and tax fosses on which no deferred tax was recognises

Teax expense &t the effective income tax rate of (3.96%) {31 March 2022;
(0. 21%%:])

Breakup of deferred tax recognised in the Consolidated Balance sheet
Particulars

Deferred tax asset

Tam business losses and urabsorbed business lesses

Proporty, plant and cquigment and other intengible nssets

Laase labilitles

Trade recievable

Impairment loss on Lhigite] Financial Services

Prowvisian for oroplaves bonefits

Disallawances undar Sectian 40{a)l), 136 of the Income Tax Act, 1951
Total

Total defarred tax assets recognised (A) {refer note balow)
Deferred tax liabilities
Mon-canveriible debentures

Total deferred tax linbilities (8)

Met deferred tax assets/{liabilities) {A=B)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Faor the year ended
31 March 2022

0.73 218
D33 2.6
4115 (4.7}
31.15 4,72
31,88 ] {2.56]

For tha yvear ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

LA REERTR
{B06.26] [1,2B4.18}
(0963 [(333.59;
1.29] 11,64
L4ars 4,149
241:32 313.50
31.78 {2,56)
Az at Az at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

201362 1,799,460

.16 2.449

2.28 029

1.8 .20

370.52 12242

11.28 1015

1u0.44 3531
2,352.74 1,875.27

0.93 31.1E

0.93 -

— 0.93 =
o= - 31.15

Detail of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the Consolidated Balance

Sheet:
Particulars

Deduclible temgorary differences and unussd [ax losses Tor which na deferad Lax
assets have been recognisad gie attiibutasle to the '.D"D'ﬂ'l";'!

- Eax business losses

- unaisurberd depreciation

- ather deductible termacrary cifferences

As Bt

31 March :‘.DZE

As at
31 J:Iarc:h 2022

7,538.08 6,745,558

74,85 57.55
1,300, 72 67615

H,913.65 747928

Utilzalian of tax business lusses s subject Lo exairy ol B oy2ars, Lngbsorbed deprecialion can e carcied Torsand foroae indelinile periog. Olhes deductible

tamporary ditterences da nob have any exairy date.

Thee group offsebs bax assers and liazilties if and onby if it bas & legally enforceable rinbt o set off current toe assets and current tax lishilites ane the deferred

Lax assels and deferrad lax liatillies relate foincsme baxes levied Sy the same bax authorily.




ONE MOBIKWIK S¥S5TEMS LIMITEDR [Torrmearly knowis a5 ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Mobtes 1o the cansolidated MAaandal skatements for the year ended 31 March 2023

pAaroer= in [kE 'rli!!i-::ru.. Jrl!l-g,_a_, athere s stated
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a

al

L]

Employea banafits

Defined contribution plans

Tae Grpur makes conkizutkars boesrds Provident Fund oo 3 Safired conbriZulion retivement benefit fan for gualfeing enployess, Te Smop's rorsibenar ba
the Frgloyes Provident Fung = deposited wiit the Provident Fund Tome £50ner o ich is recagn sed oy lrooms Tax anchanhos.

Trre Group fas recognised THA 15,51 mullion dunng the year eadet 47 March 70
Lhe Stalerrent of Brofil and Luss, The cotr sations gayable to thesa pans By the G

Defined banent plans
Gratuilty = defined benefit plan

31 Mzrch 20228 NR LSBT millicn )y Tor provident Fand 3nd oer foands in

“p are at rates specifies in e roles o7 the schemes.

e Eroup’s gDty semme praydas fon Lmp sam paymeak oo wasted smployess at reticenent, desth while in @msloymeil or oo termingtioe of emplayet

o 2r emoenl egquivalent Lo 15 days’ basic salary peeabs

o [P 2,20 million in terens of the provsons of Graoaby &z, 1978, Wesk g cocars upon sonpletion of 5 vears of service,

for pach corezloben panr of sErvlce or part EREres’ in @xcess oF S MoIE, subjed Lo a mesiran limit

Tra present value of the defines Cereli cbligaton ang the relabes carreit service axstowsons massured using the Projected Unit Soadit Metrad with actuacia

waluztons Deing canies out al ezch reporling dale.

Tre aimcant aduded ir the comzalidated firancia! slaternent ansog frorm 2e Sroup's chliges .nr In reszect of = gratu e slan s &5 fodows !

Gratuity = defined hanalit plan

As ak Az at
21 March 2023 31 March 2022
rezsent value of uncfndes defined beneft cbligsdon o 1T 016
Reconciliation of the netl defined benefik liability.
Movarant In tme srasett value of defired serslit cbligsdon aie as Tollows !
Aesonciiavon of prevest alos of defined kensSe abiigation for Smtaiy
As ot Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Ezlanie at the baginnirg o Lhe year 25.18 2E.94
Leef s pad CEGTY f1.063)
Cument servios ogst q.22 12010
[rierast cost 1.62 205
Actuzrial (yzing] losses
- charges 11 BEMrogrpnic ies) mptons [5.20] [4.07)
charges in Franc al assant 2dons i 1.06} 120
- Experieie adjuslinants 2.68 EEEL
Balance at the end aof the year 28,75 I6.16

Amount recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss =

Far the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Currenk service cusl G622 12.01
Mlet interast axponss LE2 2.0
Racognisad n profit ar loss 7.84 14,07
Premezsarerient of the ret defired berafe lab ey

actuarial (gar) less o defined bansfit chiigation L.42 (14,00
Racognisad in othar comprahansive incoma 1.43 £13.22)

e mast rezent astoanal valuabors of th presens valie of T8 detieed beet s lzhility were caoies cul al 31 March 2023, The grasent velue of the defines
benefit hability, =nd melatad curment sereice oast and Dast serdice cnst wara measured Using the prajected uril credit melhos,

c} The principal assumption used for the purpose of actuarial valuation ara as fallows:

Prinzipal actuzoal pssum ptons ak tra cseporting done (expressed & weig fted awsrages i

A5 ot As ak
21 March 2023 31 March 2022
Jscount rate N L] B 1 3% - 005
Cxpecled rawe of salzry indrease 12,005, 12 - 15%
Hetirement aga 56 years 55 years
attritcn mw A0 FELLEE
Hartality tesle India fssi-ed Life I1dia fzsured Life
Martaity MortElizy

T Gincup regularty assesses thesa assurptiors Wit the procecked long-term cans ang grevalent incustry stendards.

d} The slan bypoally expesas the Groop to 2etaarizl nses such as: imterest -2on langeety Ask ana szlarge dsk,

Interest rate risk
4 darrense in the bang interest rate will Inc-ease the plan labl o

Longevity risk
The prasent value of the defined beaefit plan iab by s colzulates By sefarence o the Cest estimale of Te morlality of plat peclicipants both cerirg arss sfees
e arnoaymeit, Aninoresse in the ifz sxpectarey of the pan sarticipaess wil Incregse e olet s liabiTe.

Salary risk
Tre present valug o the defines zeralit plan Fability i calculzted oy reference Lo Cie future salzres of plas pactizipants. &s such, 2n incsass intha salary af
the plz parsie sarts will Increase the slan's lasiny




OME MOBIKSWWIK SYSTEMS LTMITED {farmar|y known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Motes to the consolidated financial statementls for Lhe year ended 31 March 2023

{ameunts 3 1A millinrs, unkes

nErErise statedd

L}

Sensitivity analysls
seanoriably possible chanoes 2t the recerung date o one of Lhe relevel ecaarizl gssomplions, hzlding olher gs20 nplons conslatt, wouls have affecad the
e rped berafd cblinzzon ow $e armounks 2hown Balow:

For the year endad 31 March 2023 Increase Decrease

Imipec: of charge i discocat rake by 1556 Vi1 Eah n.En
Impaer af chargs i salary oy 19 055 0LEET
[rpact of cnange In employes L rmower rate By 1% (0.20% D.21
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Increase Drecrease

[rzact of Cranse In discouss mts by 155 (0753 0.3+
Dincacl of Crangs in salsey by 15% (IS HIEA
Lmzact of crange ineraloges wrreser rabe oy 1% P15 0,19

Althoagh e analygis do2s ral take acoount of T full dlstr ootion of cash flows exzecled urder the dan, it 2oes proavide an aporoeimatlar of the sersteity of
Lhz 2ggampuans shav.

The table below sumimarisas the matudty profila and duration of tha gratuity DIty hasad on undistounted axpactad fukure cashflows:

Az at AL ak

Partlculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
15t “ollernrsg year §.95 6.5
2ra bolow ng yane 3.94

3rd Tollowing pear a7n

Ath Follcw g year 443

lath folficwr rg yaar A1

Sas af vears 690 14 4.8

Total 35.00




OMNE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly known as ONE MOBTKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED]
Maotes ta the consolidated Tinacial stabements for the year ended 31 March 2023
tarrauris in CAE millizns, anless ooierwise staled)

29 Employee Stack Option Plan = 2014 ("The 2014 Plan*)

w2 thr balding Campey establisies e Crplovess Steck Qplen Schermne 2024 CCR0F 2024° whicl wes eoproved Dy Tie shasabalders «ide Thelr soecial se2salotlon daten ar b augusk 2004,
drder the pan, Whe Faldirg Senpars £ 2ulhoriEsad Wisses ue 20 4,564,260 edaity shares of IMR 2 each to &igiblz errployess. Fraployees cawarsd By Hie plan are grares @9 pabor b
surclase shares of the Falding Comcary subleck 22 1he macJirements of vesting {refar note 470,

Tam ES0F 014 scherne wes grrenzed gad aperases by the Goard of Dirscloss afl the baldicg Zorezery e0 Weie meelicg kel o1 57 July 2021, Surter Avarded SS0OP #2214 soneme was
aligra in guoardance wit e 36230 (Share 2ased Employes Benells and Sweal Eouity) Regulations, 2021 which was sproved n the boand rasting ieid on 07 Damomber, 22T,

ZALE ERAYTMERTS SERVICES PRIVATS LTMITER (hecsinafter ~gfermes o "suzsldls~y carpany™) astahlistan tne ESDE Soeme 2020 ("Zeakoay CE2OP Schere 20207 which was approwed by
the sharehzidess wids thrir soecal mealuton mated o 31 Zecamber 2020, Employess coeeran oy the plan are grares an aplon Lo perchase sharas of 1e sabs digry company 50 zject bo the
requirzmmers o seslirg.

Westing condition:
“nocase of Faleing Coampany, the wesong cancioan af opaars is sumpect i cothnued aresloymraent ard e case of subzidiz - Sonpary, e v2sting cordition is subject to continued emzloareant
and satefrclor of speafied performrdrog orilera.

Westing period;
Tlha Huding Compaay s issued above options w0 graced vesting with westing aesiad ranging ory 1 bo & yaars, The Subsic arg Carrpary Ans sseed opaans wio grades weshing with
wasting cesizd ranging Tor 3 10 4 years,

Enercise period;
Exerciza serod woule exolre at the end of 7 - L0 waass from the cate of wasting of cotlons,

cb% Mavemenls during the wegs
The following table represents the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP] of, and movamenks in, share options during tha year for Holding Company:

S0P 2014 Scheme
As at

31 March 2022

Ag at
21 March 203X3

e _ _ _ Mumber of OptHions WAEP Numbrer of opticns WAEP
Zatstanzing of tha heginning of the yaar 118,737 2,889,414 1.28.818 263105
Tatloas granbed during tha vear - - 42,507 2.263.46
Z2tions exersizad Aurng the year 5 = (35,725) 1.661.24
Zations fodfeited Jurng Te wear 1L ARG 3,542.53 (16,3630 3.502.39
Zalioas ouzstanding at The erd of the veer 1,408,081 256505 1,18, 437 1 GG, 24
wesbed optians outstanding at e ard of The year [Exerciszble) 07,355 2,923.01 £5.775 1.550.04
T shiare aplions calsténding al the end of Lthe wegr had a weghled verage exendise pice of [N 2,565,865 (31 Macch 2023 MR F&85.44), ant o waghtrd awarags remaming cartractual
life of 3,98 years (31 Mancy J022: 5,21 vears),
SAumeyded ESOP 2013 Sohemme ! —
Ag at As at
31 March X123 31 March 2022
Mumber of Options WAEP Mk ey of Optians WAEPR
Dukstang 14 at e zeqianing of T vaat 1 4 = G
SicHons arartes dysiea the year 1,850 2,080,250 2.0
Cotions Torfeited gurinm Tie vEar 159,635 (14,8851 2.0
Celions Julstanding 82 the end of tha vea 3.13.7¢4 1,493,355 ]
wested Cations Cutstardinn at the end af the veer [Exgrclsaale) 41,283 = -

Toe share wslions satslanding et Lha ene of the year Iad a waiglted gve-ape swercsa prca al INR 200 731 Maich 20220 1R 2003, and & weighted average ramairg carastual e af 8,53
vears {31 March 2022 519 veans).

The follewing tahla ropresents the number and weighted average everclse prices (WAEFP) of, and mavements in, share aptions during the year for Subsidiary Company:

Zopkpay Emploves Share Options Sohaiwe

Az at
31 March 2032

As at
31 March 2023

Mumbet of Opbons WAEP Mumber nr_ F_Iptinn: _ \NAEP
Cratsbanzing al thee Beginnirg of Cie wazs SE3 c.054 - =
thips granted dusing Lhe year - - 1,031 2,20, 344
tHeas “prteted dunng e e (214} 2.044 (B3] 3,358,373
Hos au=manding at tne ard o the pear 19 1 5,054
wasted aptans out=manding at tie ard of The vear [Exerosatla) 40 1 5 -

wrars (A1 Mo 2022 12,90 weam).
o) Rarge of exgicise ooe far share sptlzns sukstanging at the end af the year!

ESOP 2014 Scheme ;

A% at A ak
Exarcleg price { Amgunt in IR ) 21 March 2023 31 March 2022
10 £ = —— 21,645 B
40 15231 20,5
£og 12,487 32443
2ana 43 a2
4420 92.454 9,404
5,768 7374 2,374
& to7 £ 033 6.843
7.307 15427 10,508
807« 1753 6,062
9,340 151 hg3
Amended ES0F 2014 Scheme :
Exercise price { Amount in INR ) s 31 P at As ot
7 ; 310 780 1,893,355




OME MOBIKWIHK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formar|y known as OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED )
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Zaakpav Ernployes Share Owliens Scheme
Exercise price { Amaunt in THR )

As at
31 March 3033

As at
31 March I022

1
35458

d} 7w emighted averege ‘ac vaiue ab aptars granted pndse the FSC
subsiciary carnzany anzer Zeakpay Srecloyes Share Option Schame was 3

152

s were issaed Carir

374
=4

2014 smreme during e year was IRA L poropobon ©31 Manch 20030 INE DD AGEEZ cer polor) and in cass ol
no MR il e aptien (31 Marcn 20220 18R 123,260 e 0plon) as na new gral

g e wazr dndes

e alzresaid vealioned sonemes, Trhe weighbed average Tair value of cplizns graasted ancer the amended ES27 2014 scheme duiingd the year vwas INE 525,15 par ootlon (31 Ma-ch 2023

IHR 210,60 ser aptizn].

Al Cuparige ars g rar squily-seillad saeee-tased pevmeal lrenszoars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

S3.24

I The astimmation o Tair welae on date of granl was made using e Slack-5ckales madel ie Hzldirg Coengary wi T tha Tollxed g assunstion

Inputs for measurement of grant dake fair values of ESOPs

Ze0.04

Particulars

For e year anded
31 March 2033

For the year andad
21 March 2022

Exercise price- fin [N

Teirwaluz 2L arank date- fin INRY

Expesiod valabihby (Staraarn Devabion - Snnusy
Risk Tree rale

Crwvizard yald

Amendad ESOF 2014 Schoma !

40 - 9.920
S.490 - 18672
A0.7% - 43.5%

S5.8% - 6.5%
0.00%

Particulars

Faor bhia year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Exerclse price- fin [N

Fair walue &t arart date- (in MR

Cxpaclad Yelalilily (Slarcare Devalion - Arrael)
Fisk lree rale

iz peld

Z
G54 - 825
4175 - 4.7
5.0 - G.0%
L00%

Tne estimation af fal- walug on docs of grart wes mate using the Black-Schoes mzdel ard the Mente Ceci Simulators (MOS ) Method 0 tka Sugsidiary Company with the folizsing

ARSLMIPTEn

Zaakpay Employes Share Dptions Scheme
Inputs for measurement af grant dake fair values of ESOPs

Parklculars

Exoreise arics- {in 1A

Fair waluz 2t grant cates [in MR

Exceciad volatility iSzandars Devatlon - Anrugh
Flsk free 1wte

Mvigend yialz

Faor tha year ended
31 March 2023

For the yaar anded
31 March 2022

|- BEH L
27,562 - 151,481
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30 Falr value measurements

a) Category wise details as to carrying value, fair value and the level of fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's
financial instruments are as follows:

Asg at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 20232
Level
Financial assets
a) Measured at fair value through ather
comprehensive income {FYTOCI)
« Invesbment in MPCL {rafer note #{a)) Level 3 16.21 10,37
14,21 10.37
b} Measured at amortised cost
- Trade receivazle {refer note 5 Lewal 3 758,53 294 .35
- Cash and cesh eguivalents (refer note 100 Lewal 3 935.78 477,45
- Sther bank balances (refer nate 107 Lewet 3 2,680,15 3.364.05
- Others financal assets (refer note 7ic) ) Lewsa] 3 853,56 2,304.44
5,229.02 6,444, 37
Total financial assets 5,245.23 6,.454.74
Financlal llabilities
a) Not measured at fair value (Other financial *
liabilities)
- Barrawings {refer nate 13) Lewvel 3 1,922.73 1,509.14
- Lease liakilitias (refer note 42) Level 3 132,97 6E8.01
- Trade payables {refer nole 14) Lavel 3 1,178.33 747.94
- Security deposits (refer nate 15) Lewel 3 .59 0.59
- Drher financial lizhilities (refer rota 15) Level 3 2,285.38 3,724.80
Total financial liabilities 5,534.00 6,050.48

b} The following methods f assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
i} Tne carrying value of bank deposits, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, security deposlts, loans, bomowings
and other current financial assels and olher current financigl lahbllites mezsured at amartised cost aopraximate thair fair value due to the
short-term maturties of these instruments.

111 The fair value of non-current financal assets and financial labilities measured are determinad by discounting future cash flows using

currenk rales of instruments with similar terms and credit risk, The current rates wusec daes nob reflect significant changes fram the discount
rates usad initially. Therefore, the carrying wabue of Lhesa instruments measdred atl amartised cost approximate their fair value.

iii) Fair value af Inveslment in NPCL is Dased on net asset value,

<) There were na trans‘es betwesn any levels for Fair value

d

'

Follawing table descibes the valuation techniques used

Financial assots Valuation technigues Key inputs Sensitivity

Trnvestment in cguilvinsbruments al other entitdes
Maticnzl Payment Corporation of Tneia ("HPCT") Refer nate below® HNet asset value Refar note belows=

# The lair values of financlal assats included In level 3 have been determinad in accardance with generally accepted valuation medsls,

*¥ Sepsilivity Lo changes in unchservable inouts; The fair walue of the financial assets s directy proportional to the estimated book: value of
the company.

Changs In slgnificart unchservahle input of discount rate by 100 bps and growth rate by 100 baos In the valuation does nat have a signifizant
impack on the carrying value of the assets In the consolicatad firansial infermation,

Reconciliation of level 3 falr value measurements
Investment in eguity instruments of other entities

As at As at
21 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 10.37 F.70
Additizns £ =
Geins recognised in OCT .84 2.67
Closing balance 16.21 10.37
ig e hasis ris f i fair into Lewel 100 Leys] 3:

Leval 1: This lavel includes finandal azsels thal are measured by reference o quated prizes (unadjusted) in active markes for identical
assets ar labilities,

Leval Z: This level includes linancal assets and labilities, measured using inputs ather then gquoked prices included within Level 1 that are
ansarvable far the zsset ar liabiliby, either dirccly (2., as grices) or Incirectly {lLe., dedved from arices).

Lewal 3: This lewsl Includes financial assets and liabilites measvred using inpuls that are not based on observable market data
{uncbhservable inpuls). Fair values ase determined In whole or In part, using & veluation madel based or assumplicns el are neither
supportad by arces frem observakle currenl mearkel lransactians in the same Instrument nar are they basec an availabla markest dafas.
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21 Capital management

The Greup maseges Its cagilal to ensure thab ib will be able to conbinue as & gaing concern while mamizng the return to slekehalders through she apbrizacion of the
debt 2nd eguily balance, Too capital structure of the Sraup cansists of nes debt {note 127 offset by cash and bank halarce fnote 100 and tokal equity of the Geaug, The
Group is not subjeck to any externally impased cagtal recuirements,

The: Halding Comzany's board of divgclors reviews the capital strocture of the Grouz 20 & perisdic besis, A5 part of chis reviaw, the Board of directors considers the cost of
capitzl, raks assaciated with cach dass of cepital requirements and maintenanse of adecuate lquidily.

The Group manpges (15 captal structure and makes adju

mens 7 the lant of changes in eceoomic srvirsnment ans the requirements of The fnandial covenants,
Gearing ratio

The Group manitors cacital an the basis of e fellowing gearing rabo:
Rel delil Labal borrawings net of cash anc cash eguivalants)
divided by
wlal equily [as show n the statement of 25sets and liabilities).
Tre gearing ralio ab end of the reporbing year was as follows.

As at As at
__ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Solr awings LB 73 1,500,14
Cash and cash equivalents {936.78) [477.4%
Adjusted Net Debt (A) 985,25 103365
Total equity (B) ; 215622

Met debt to equity ratio

48 %

2ot Iz cetined as fong-term and shark-kerm barrawings.
32 Finandal risk management objectives and policles

The Group menagemsst Monitors and manzges key finanial risk relating to the operztians of tha Graup by snalvsing expasures by dagree & magnitude af risk, The nsks
Inzluze market risk dincluding intersst rate risk, comency risk @nd obher price risk?, sredit risk and liquidity risk.

The Halding Cornpany’s board of directors has averall responsibility for the estacliznment and aversiget of the Group's nsk rmanagament lamewsark, The Sroup's risk
menagemeant policies are esbablished to idenbfy and analyse the risks faced by bhe Group, b set appropsiate risk limits and controls and to monitor nsks and adheence to
limits. Risk marpoement pollces and syslems gra reviewed regularly to reflect changes in marzel conditions and the Group’s activites.

I} Credit risk managemank

Credic nsk Is the risk that a ceunler party will nat meet its sbligations under a linanzial inssroment ar customer contract, leading b a financial fess. The Sroug is expased
Lo credit risk from ibs operating ocovitles (primarily trade recsivables snd finandal guarantes provided by the Group? and from Its fingncing activites, induding depasits
with banks gnd financial Instibutians, rmotoal funds and other financlal assets. Management hias a credie polley In place and Lhe exposire toocredit risk s mositored on an
angoing kasis.

Ife carrylng @mounts ar financial assets and the maximum arrount the Sroup would have 2 pay IF the Hnancial guarardes is called upon, imespective ot the kelinaad af
tre guarastes heing exerosed, recresents the maximum credit nsk cxposure,

Cradl risk rmanagement conslaers avallable reazanable and supportive farward-looking Infareiation indudicg indicatars ke edtemal cadic rating {as far as available),
macres eronomic infermalion (Such as regulatory changes, govemment diréclives, market irterost ratel,

Trade recefvalias

The: Group is ceposed to credit 85 in the event of pen-payment by trode partnars. Receivable credit risk is managed subject ta he Group's established palicy, procedures
and conkral relating Lo Lrade parteers risk management. The Groug uses & proavision matris to getermine ‘mpairment lass allseance an partfalio of 1ts trade receivahiles
thrzugh a lifcme expected credit loss. The pravision matrix 5 Gased an Iks hislarically abserver default rates over the exserled life of the brade recenvasles and s
adjustad for faward-looking estimates,

" _Ageing of receivables Is as follows :

As at As at
31 March 2033 F1 March 2022

Mol Crue 596.43 157.00
Lass than & months 45,68 £h.63
S months - 1 year 1044 42 17
1-2 vears 720 Gh,20
2:1 years IR 0,04
_Mare than 3 years 001 2,10
Total 764.23 295,14

Ihe maximum exposure Lo dredil risk ab the repestng date |5 the carrying value of each closs of Ainencal azsets. The Sraup does et hold collateral as sacurity.

Digital Financial Services

The Group expasure to credit risk s fram the Digilal Asandal sorecos ousness inowhich Lhe Graug facilitates credic o its wsers thoough financing partners, [he Sroup
provides fingncial guaranlees oo the Digical financial sarvices business be ks Mnencing sertrers to covar Ehe lass an the credit extended ta s users. Financial guarantaes
are capped b the extent agreed with the respective partner. Further, with effect from 01 December 2022 in line with e recent RET guigelines in relation to routing of
flow of tunds Detween users and fingnong partners, there have been a changs in the gmangement of the Graup wilh tie fingnong portmer ang as per the rewvised
arranyernents, the Group does not have any exposure o credit sisk for the new cradits given lo ils users trraugh firancng partners. Theralars, lhe sxposure for credit
risk still exizts ab the year end on the credits which were given orice Lo the new guidelines bl the dete Hiey are being settied and paid off 35 per the agreed Larms.

Afinandal guarantee conlrack is & contract that requires the izsuer Lo make spedficd payments to reimbures the halder for g lass it nours becauss a spacified debior Sils
Lo make mayrnents when due In accordance with lhe terens of a debt inssroment,

cancentialians, ard by moenitgring exposures |noralation te such limits.

Crizdit riss 15 monttored by the cradil risk depearcment of the Group’s Incesendent Risk Masagement Uit (RFUY. 1T IS their respansibility to review and manage cradit risk,
Including enviranmental and social sk for all Types of users. The RMU carsist of cxparts and credit rsk managers that have deep expertlse in He camain of financial and
sredit pskoaf DIgctal Finandial Sesvices and are respansiblz for ranaglag the sk of Digital Fnencizl Services porttoliz including coedit risk systemns, palicies, madals and
reparting.
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At o Ao

Ine Group has estoblished a credic qualiby receiese process o provicds sarly wearming sigoals teoidentife the changes in the credibearthiness of 16 ogital Finandal Services
wsers, Lser limits are established by the use of & credit rek classificetion system, which asslans each Digital Financial Services veer a risk rating. sk ratings are subiect
to requizr revision, The crodit guality review process enables the periodic sssessment of the potentae] [oss beowbich the Group is exposed Theeely allowing it o take
sorrerbive aodions,

The Groug has, based an correnl available informalizn and based on Lhe golicy 2ppraved by Lhe Beard of Direcioms, deleqmings the provision for impalrment of Tnancizl
gsgeks.
Concentration of credit risk

Cancentrations arise when a number of usars are engoged in similar business ackivides, or acivibes in the same geographical region, or nave similar economic features
that would cause therabiliby baomeset cantraciual abligalions Lo be similarly afected by changes in aconomic, political or olhas candilions.

Im orger to avard excessiee concentrabons of risk, the Graup's policies and procedures incluce specific guoadelives Lo Moous an spreading ils Digital Financial Sereces
portfedio seross various productssstatesscustomer bEse with a cap an maximum et of expasure for an InividualfErovp,. Accardingly, the Group does nob have
cancentration ris,

Expocted credit loss on financial guarantee contract

The: Gronpe fas, based on curresl available information and based o0 the policy azproved by the Board of Directos, calculated Impatimeant (052 gllowance In the Digital

Financial Services business using the exopected Credit Loss {000 model t2 cover the guarantecs provided tooks finencing partners,
Expectad credit loss [ECL} mathadolagy

The Group has assessed The aradil risk assodated with its financlal guarantee contracts for pravision of Sxzected Credit Lass (ECL) as &t the reportlng dates. The Group
makes use ot varlous reassnable suppartive forward-looking parametars which are ech qualitacwe o5 well a5 guenbtstive while determining the change in cradiz risk and
thp prabability of default, The anderlying ECL paramelers have ean delailed outin the nate on "Summary of significant accounting policies™,

Since, the Group offers digital financial :.:e.':\.-i-:xe.f: and ather aMerings Lo a large ralail customer base oo ils digital platfonm via markebplace model, Derg is no signilicant
cradil risk of any individual custormer that may Impact the Group adversely, and fence the Group has celculataa s ECL ellowances on a collacive basis,

Tre Graep has devsloped 8n ECL Model that takes Into conslideraton the staqe of delinquency, Probatzility of Defaule | #, sxoosure ot Lefault {EAL) and Lass Glven
Cefault [LGI,

L. Probakility of Defult (0 reoresents the likelhood of default ower a defined time harizan, Tee defintion of PROs token as 90 days past oo far all leans,

[T. Paposure ab Defaclt (EADG: repreézents what is the users likely Docrowing akb the lime ar darfaull.

[IL. Loss Shwen Default (LGS0 represents expecked losses on EAD given the cvent of defaulk,

kzch finanogzl guarartes contract is classified into (a] Slage 1, (b] Stage 2 avd Jo) Stage 3 (Default o Credit Trepeired], Dedinguency bucksts tave been consicdared as
the Dasis far Lhe slazging al all credit expasurg under tThe quarantee contract In the r-:-llr_"-'.llng MmEennar:

81 Stage 17 U-30 doys past dur loans

b] Stage 2: Mare Lhan 30 and up o 20 days gast dus logns

C) Stage 3: Abave 9 doys past dus loens

Inpubs, essumptions and estimation techniques used to determine expacted cradit loss

The Groug's ECL provision are made on the bass of the Group's histocelcal loss experlence and “uture expectad credit loss, after factonng In various macro-gconamic
perameter, In coloulating the ELL, given the uncertainby over the patectial macrg-ecanemic impact, the Groops management has consideresd intemal and extemal
infarmaliar including credit repoits and economlc farecasts up to the date ot approval of these fnanclal results. Tne selectlon ot varlzbles was rmade purely bassd an
business sense,

The selected macrs- economic varables were wsed to forecast the farward-lagking FO'5 with macro-coonemic oveday incerporated, Boest, base and warst scenanos wers
rreated for 21l the werables and default rabes were astimated for all the scenarios. These default rates were then used with the same LGD and EAD ba arrive at the
exoected credit loss for all three cases, The three cases wers tren assigned we ghes and @ final probatality-weighted espected cradit loss estimals was compoted,

The Group has also assessed the possible impact of COVID-12 pandemic on cach sorrower and signifcant Increase in credit riss based o0 deleyed payments metrics
phserved alarg wilt an estincalion of pobantial stress on prabability of defaults and lass given delzult. fs & resdlt of uncertainties resulting from COVID-1%, the impad of
this pandamic may be differant from those estimated as on the oote of approwval of these fnandal results ang the Sroup will continue o monitor any changes ke the
Future eoartarmic concitions,

Analysis of porttolio

Gross exposure af dofpult (EAD) and expecled credit loss on financial guacantes coniract as af the eod of the reporiing year:

Particulars (A) (B} ) (o)
Gross cwposure at default Expected credit loss Wet carrying amount | | Impact on profit
[EAD)* allowance [ECL)}* (financial guaranbes or loss*+
ohligation}*

Ax at 31 March 2023 E
Where credil isk nas nob signiticantly 1.511.86 1953 12,63 1,005,522
Increases from initial recagriticn (Stage

Where credil sk has  Increased 174,52 7440 T2

sigrificantly but are npt credit impaired : |
|CGlage 29 S | . — e

Where  credil sk has  Increased S04,54 | FHE AT 749.33

significantly  and  are oredit impaiced |

Slaue 34 N ey © S et by 1

Tatal 2,491,32 ___B48.18 | ___ B4B.16 _1.095.93 |
(A= at 31 March 2022 -

Where credlt risk nas not significansly 1,971,890 .05 4,05 Q0765
lincreasad from inilizl recagnitian (Stzge

|1}

Wikre credil risk  has increazed 400,22 131.B1 lE1dE]L

slgniblcantly bet are not credit impaired

el L ;
Wrera  credit sk has  increased
sigrificantly  and  are  oredit  impalred
‘Stage 3)

Total 2. 705.87 4B0.87 489.87 g907.69

Gt
il
)

&

L

744,00 T 242 ||
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*Gross Exposure at detzult, expected credlt loss allowance (ECL) and net carsying amount does net Include the oblgaticn from finarcial guarantee contracts, a5 ot 11
March 2023 1A 104,91 Midbion (37 March 2027 THA 10G,27 Milliso], on pcoount of the matter disclosed in note 41,

Motes:

1, Gross cxposure at default (A) represents Phe maddmoen amaent the Group bas guaranteed] under the respective lnancial guarantgs coatracls including amaeunt
pulslanding, acorued interest, futurs Interest due and any expacied dizvwdawns in fubors *om the sznctioned lzan limits as an the reporting date,

2. The Expected Credit Loss {B) allowarce is cormputed as a preduct of P, DGO and FAD adjusted for Hme waloe of masey osing 2 rale which is & reasonable
approximal on ol EIR. -

3. Mat Carrying Amount (€} represents the Bepected Crodt Loss (ECLY recagrized an financial guarartee conbracts,

4. Impact on Statement of profit or loss (D) s the s allowznes recagnized during the Tnancial yean.

Reconciliation of expoctod crodit Loss (ECL) allowanca on financial guarantes contracts

Particulars Fimancial guarantees Financial guarantes Financial guarantee | [Total
obligation where credit | obligation where credlt obllgation whara
risk has not significantly risk has increased credit risk has
increased Trom initial significantly but are Increased
racognition (Staga 1) nat credit impaired significantly and are
(Stage 2 credit Impalred
(Stage 3)

ECL allowance as at 1 April 2021 52.07 || 0B, 37 606,78 _ I57.22
- Mew coedit exoosures during the year, 54.53 137.31 F R 4b5, 0

netofreppyments —
- Contracts sattled during the yoar (31141 (51,427 [511.30) [5R4.49)
- Transler hebweaean slages duing Lhe (13.80] (4.58} 136,97 118,58

vear
- Mawament due ta apening EAD and 2.4 12,13 {27120 [256.532)

credil risk
ECL allowance as at 31 March 2022 G4.05 I 181.81 Zdd.01 482,87
- Mewe credit exposures ouring the 19 46 75,29 CEAAL || 523596

w2, ek af repnyments | = :
- Contracts seftlad during the year (58.411 117042 1513.05] L A
- Transter betweean stages dunng e (4.6H) dE0 18.14 45,25

Rarils 5
= Firnancial guaranbes conkrack atligations B l =

- - 20, 5267

secruad but not setbied (refer note belaw) aibo] i
- Mavemnent due ta apening EAD and (079 EERCTI 54,417 (88, 13)

credib risk - L
ECL allowance as at 31 March 2023 19.63 759,20 F49,33 848,16

Fote - Luring the year ended 31 March 2023 ang 31 March 2022, fAinanczl obligation amounting ta IR 1,031,906 milllion and THR 140058 million respectovely sore paid.

Cash and cazh egquivalents, bank deposits and investrients in rmulesl funds
Thne Graus malntains Iks cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and invesbment In mutual fungs with reputed panks and financal instistiens. The credit risk on hese
nstrements is limited becavse the counterpactes are Banks weth nigh credit razings assigned by internetional credit rating syencies.

Securlty deposiis

Tre Group manitors the credit reting of the counterparties on regular basis, These Instruments carry very minimal credic dsk besed on the firondal positlon of partizs and
Sroup's historical experience of dealing with the parties,

i) Liquidity risk management

Ligguidily risk is lhe risk thal the Groug will @ncouster dificully in meeling e oligations associaled with Its financial lapilizies that ace settled by delivering cash ar
anather financial asset. The Group's appreach to managing louidiy i5 ta onsure, 25 for 25 possizle, that it will haee sufficient liguidity to rmeet its linhilities when they are
chue, under bolk normzl and slressed conditions, wilhaut incurring unacceplable osses or risking damage o the Group's reputaton.

Uitimate respansizility for lgquidicy rsk management rasts with the ooard of directors, wha has establishad an approgriate lguidity risk managemaent framewark for e
rmartagermient of the Group's short-Lerm, madiom-larm and leng-term funding and liguidily managaement reguirements, The Sroup manages lquidity risk by maintaining
adequste reservas, benking facllites, by continuously manibaring torecast and actual cash Aows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and labilities.

The Group has eccess to fnancing fadiiicies as described below. The Sroup expects to meet 1Ts other obbgations from operating cosh flows and proceeds of maturing
finaneizl assets,
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Bank pvordraft and term loan facility:

= Amagnt nsilsed 1.430.712 1.50%.14
= Errrananb veralilised ANe.gd R.23

Maturitics of financial linkilitics
The tahle below surmmian ses the materity profile of the Group's finanzial liakolinies 2ascd on contractual cndiscounted payments:
The contrackual rmaturity is based on the eadiest date or which the Groug may be reqguired e pay,

Contractual maturities of financial Habllities

Az at 31 March 2023 Within 1 year Batweaen 1 and 5 yaars Tatal
Trinle payahbles 1,108,533 T 1,178,312
case lishilities 3150 138,148 158,68
b Minancial liakslitieg 1,451,260 0,35 1,451.81
Firranial guaranlae abligalion A4B.16 - 848,16
GBorrawings 1,701.52 224.60 1,526.33
5,210.97 353,33 5,574.30

As at 31 March 2022 Within 1 yvear Betwesan 1 Bnd 5 years Taotal
Iradz payables F47.94 a4
Lemsy linhilibicy 14,81 4,02 69,45
Qther Noancial liabilitiss 3,235.17 035 3,235.532
Fingncizl guarantes atligation 45087 - ARE9.87
Barrawings 1,508.14 - 1,509, 14
5,996.95 74,97 8,071.92

i) Market risk

Markel risk is Uhe risk that the fair weloe of future cash flows of a financial instroment will Aoctuate becaose of changes in market prices. Merket risk comprises three
types of risk: Interest rete risk, currency risk and cther price visk, such as equity price sk and cammadity dsk. Financlal Instruments aftected by market rlsk Include
Fpreign currency receivables, deposits, investrments in metoal funds, The Group has in zloce approprigte risk management policies to limit the impect of these Asks o0 its
Hnanclal zerformance. The Group ensures optimization of <ash thraugh fund planning and rafust c2sh management practices.

{a) Interest rate risk

Interast rabe risk Is the risk that e tair valua or future cash Mows of a fnancial nstrument will fluctuate Because of changes in market Interest rates. The sensitivity
disclosed n Hie below is attrbutatbde to bank overdraft foolice availed by the groug, Sthee borrowings of the Group bave fized interest ke,

Seasitivity

I 0.5% change in irterest rate (Bank averdratt & term laan)
G, 5% change in interost rate (Bank averdraft & term loan)

Impact on profit/loss before tax
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(#.13) -]
F.15 £.55

{h} Currency risk

Foreign cusrency risk is e risk that the lair value ar fubore cash Mows af an expoasuore will Toctuale Because of changses in foreign sxchangs rales. Toe Graup is expasend
o currency risk te the extent that there Is & mismatch between the currences In which sales and ourchasze of services are denomingted (e, USD] and the respactive
functional currencias of Gradp companies {i.e. TNR).The sensilivily related to oarrency risk i discolasss pelow,

Trhe Group’s exzosure to forgian correnty risk was based an [he Tallowing amaunls as al Lhe reporting <ates bebween USD and INR:

As at As at

21 March 2023 31 March 2022
Recalvable EI6 m.5a
Favable 8,323 £3.80)

Net exposure [2.06]1 {2.35)

Sensitivity Impact on profity (loss) bofore tax
Receivable . 31 March 2023 31 March 2032

= 5% change in currency @xchangs rabs .31 .03
- 5% change In currency exchange rate (731 {0.03)

Fayable 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I B84 chamge in currency gxchangs rake [ ¥] 10,14
- 5% change in currency cxchange rabe a4l .14

(e} Price risk
Investmant of Tunds of the Company in Malional Baymenl Corporalion of Trdia SNECT) s calegosized 25 'lew risk’ product fram liguidily risk perspeclives.
Sensfiivity Impact on loss belore tax
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I 5% change In fair velua G.E1 0.52
5% change in fair velue [0.E1) (0.5}
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OMNE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerly hnown as ONE MOBTHWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Moles to the consalidatad financial skatements for the year ended 31 March 2023
faro it in INE millicns., L oless ctharaiss statad)

35 Relabed party fransactions
i) Names of relaved parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have taken place;

a] Individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting powar of the Company that gives them Significant Influence over the Company and
Kay Management Personnel (KMP)

Mamea Paslgnatien
Mr, Sipn Preat Singh Manag 2g Directas B Chish Sxecutiva Sfires
Ma, Upasana Rupkrshza Taka Charzarson, Whele-lre Grector, Thisl Dperating Oficer ang S0 af =irancizl OFficer (woef. 13 June 2023]
Hr. Chandzn loshi whakz- mie Director (bl & oane 202730
Mr. Rz Bldan Chigl Fingclal SHices (Kl 1A Basember 2000
Mr. Fzhul Lutkm Lompeny Secratary (L1 14 Marc 2023)
Mr. Rzjet Havathieal Compaay Seorekary e f, L2 Sepoerny cer 20230
HMs. Funta Eurmars Sinba [ngdeperdert Diractor
M=, Sawall Karmn<ar Iridepedert diraclo
Mr. Hawdees Sitgh Suii rndependart Jirector
Mr. Eaghuram Hirerragezlor Ve <zlash Indeperdent Dlrackar
b} others
e, Lima Taku Ralgdve of @ persor having S gnifizant Tnfuenas oens the Com zany 20w
Ly Manggement Persoane (KM}
For the yaar andad Faor the year ended
i’} Transackions with related parties 31 March 2023 31 March 2‘]22_
[a} Remunaration to Key Management Personnel (KHP)
Shark-tarmn anm plowves Danefils i ] 04,99
Fost-rmployment graoa by 1.28 8:17
other kng e employes oarafes 015 1.3°
Share based payments £.19 £7.99
Lireclor's sitling ress and remytaraton TED 209
(b Legal and professional .
- Jdtrra Taka 1.ge 1.54
i} Outstanding balances with related parties At As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{a) Salary Payable T
- Mr. Bipin Frael Singn |
M5, pasana Supknshar Tzl 1.0
- Mr. RotR Shadeia &
- Mr. Rapul Luthra 012
- Mr. Lilip Sidan =
- Mr, Chardan Inshi 8.57

{b) Loans and Advances [Forex cards)

« Mr. Bipie Brees Singh 0.04 LB b

- Mz, Lipasang To<u 175 165
{c}) Payable to Independent direclors
Mz, Punlta <umar Sinka 0.50 i
Mz, Sevel <aranjkar 0.56 Q.65
Mr. Mawcees S rgh Sur L1 1B
T4r, Raguram Hirarragaior vercetesh 0,43 (.43
{d} Payalrle lor expenses
- Lsma Taku 1G4 1.64
{&) Share ssua expansa (recoverabla)

- Mr. Gipin 2reel Sirgh &7 -

- M5, Lipasans Taku 0.34 =

{iw) Terms and Conditions
Ell bramsartiors wilh ~elated sarlies @re rade on berms asulvalent b toase dhes prseadin 2om's length rarsacdons 2nd wnin tre org nary caursa of hesnass,
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OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formerly known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED}
Motas bo tha consolidated financial stabemants for the year andad 31 March 2023
dhmounts in IR millions, wnless olhewise £13%ed)
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Tl previous vesr, the Group hed Incurred losses and generated negative cash Acw fram operations, whersas In the current year thera has been impravernent in the financial
performance of the Group. The Sroup has net worth of INR 142735 milllen and & pestive working capltal pesitlon (e, 115 cumrent assets excead Its current linhilides) a5 at 31
March 2023 af INR 152,44 millfor, including cash #ad cash egvivalecds of INR 236,75 million. Further, based on Lhe Currenl business plzn and projections prepares oy Lhe
maragernent, the group sxpects o oschieve grosth in ity ooerations in e coming years wilh continuoos improversent in oparational eficiecoy, Hanagemeant has made an
pssossment of the Group's ability o2 cortinue a3 o going concern and Selieves that the Group will continue to be @ gong concern considering, amorgst other things, espeoped
growth in ooerabions, exlsting cesh and cash eguivalents and other avallable bank bslances,

In wiews af the ahove, mansgement has concduded that the gaing concem assurmplion s aporopeiate. Acoordingly, the consolidsted financial stalements da nol indede 2ny
adjustments regarding the recoverzhility and classificetion of the carrying ampunt oF assets and dassificabior af liahilines that might resale, shauld the Group be unahle
conkinug &5 3 aolng concarn.

Ratios

Ratio/Measure Methadology R 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 | Varlance
{a]) Curront Katig Current assets! Curcent liahilities 103 1.08 BT
(b} Debl-Equity Ratio thon curtent benowings=Current boirowings )y Total eqaity 1.35 Q.70 =EaN
(] Dubil Service Coveraye Ratio CBITDA/ [Tnterest expense—DBorrawings) [0.27); (0,64} S1%
(d] Haturn on Equity or  Return on (Loss) for the yearTotal equity (a5 (0,557 BT
Hnvestment Gatlo

(&) Tiade Aeceivablas turnever ratic Aevenve Mioim cperabons/ Average rade recelvables 10,25 15,71 BEELH
(F) Trarle pavables turnnwer ratio Orther expenzes/ Sverson rade caysb 5.38 o) -Z3%
(ol Met cepital turnaver ratio Aevenue from eperabens/Capltal employed LBl 1, 1.2%
(b} et proft ratic flass ) For the yearPevenoe froem opesationg (018 [02.24) 5%
(13 Returmn on Capital emploed zarnings before Interest and Taxes [ERIT ) Cagital {17,971 (30,31] 41%

ermployed

_{3 borus shares for each eguty share) (as ot 22 Juna 73217

Notes

Sverage Traoe receivables = (Opeeeg srace receivables + Closing racde receivabiles 2
fwverage Trade pavacles = [Cpening trade pavables + Closing trade pavailes)’2

ERIT = (Lomses)/Carnings Before Interest and Tawes

Capital emodoved = Total BEquity + Bomowings {Non-current and Current)

Tha raasen for variances in ratios mora than 25% are explainad as halow =

The Debt eceily ratic bas increased from 0.70 a5 at 32 March 2022 G 2035 a8 atl 31 Macch 2023 an aceaunk of ivcrease in tetal borrewings and zlso due Lo decrezse in Lalal
ruity whick is on accoune of kosses far the vear as at 41 March 2023,

The C=bt service coverage ratio has increased from (0.88) 35 at 31 March 2022 to (0,271 as at 3L March 2022 mainly due to redstive Increzse In EBITDA as companaed to
pravious year.

The Trade receivsole turnover ratie has decressed frem 15,71 as ab 31 March 2022 to 10,25 as 3t 31 March 2023 mainly dus to better collections mags furing the year,

Thie Met prafit ratic has increased from {0,241 as &t 3L March 2022 to (2,18) 85 3t 31 March 2023 malaly due to Increase in lending aoerabons and savings In oost,

Tre Return an capltal emplaves ratlo Incressed from {30,311 3‘5 akt 3L March 2022 o (17.97) a5 at 31 March 2023 mainly due to increase in lending operatons and sevings in
sl

e Board of irectors and shargholders of the Helding Company ak thalr meating mald on 20 June 2021 and $2 June 2021 respactoely, hove approved stock spit of one equity
share having face walue af INR 10 esch Inko five equity shares having face welue of INR 2 each, Furtaer, in sdditicn ta the aloressid, capltalisatlon of s2curtias premium of e
Heddding Carnpany fur issuarce aof 301 bopes shares aon fully paid equity shares baving face value of TR Z per shars hawve also been approsed.,

Mumber nf_cril,;ﬂ,r shares ) 10,41,15%5
{as ak 21 June 7041)
Humizer of Badity shares cost stock split 5, 05,980

101 eguily share inls 5 aquily shares) (as at 21 June 2021}

“umber of Equity shares with bonus shares 20823920

Make: The impact of abowve rmennened stock splic and issue of honus shares fave been consdrred resrosprctively far the purpnse of caleclstion of Basic and dilured carnings per
share for all pericds presented,

The ESGF ool of 228,213 fully pald-up Equity Shares in the Holding Company of fca value of 18R 10 each has teen adjusted and Ircressed o 4,554,280 fully pald-up Equity
Shares In the Holding Comzany of face value of INR 2 each bo qive effect of stock split and banus Issue of equity shares of the Halding Comzany as mentlened above in naote
6.

48 During 1he pear snded 33 March 3022, e Holdivg Sumpany bad coaverbed Lhe Cumulative Compulsory Canverliole Sreference Shaies [CO2PE) inbo Bauity shares as
maentinnnd Bolow -
Particulars :Iu:'lh:innaf CCPs before Conve tetmiar
Iy of equity shares
{:;'I;;r_sl-n'l- .nn-:ur..fn. sharg '§|'I|;1"§.;“I;.‘| hors '-!-I';.;I'.I: A, 201
ISSLE F
Conversion post share splits and bonus) 17,011,513 347.54,940
lige e |
Taotal | 17,37,714 3.47,89,150
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Exceptional items
Cruring the wear endied 31 March 2022, the Halding Carnpany had incurred shiare issee espenses arvounting lo INR 27242 million in connsclion wilh ils progaesed public offer and
affer for sale of equity shares, Dt of the ol cxpenses incurres, the Holding Company had expensed off TNR 61,12 millian in statement of proefit and Iess duneg the vear, on
account of expected dzlays In Inigal Public OFfer (PO filling, The balance araunt of MR 26, 20 milfion shown recaveratle, urder the heag "Cthes current financial 2ssets® as
"Share Issue Expenses” from selling snareholders 35 oer the sherehalder s agresmert, e




OME MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED (formerdy known as ONE MOBIKWIK SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)}
Maotas to tha consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
Chmounts in MR millicns, erless slhereize slaled]

50 £ALK EPAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED |"Zazkpay') had initially submilled the Faymenl sgoregalor (PR application on @ May 2021, The said applicalion was retumre:]
by the RE1 on 11 Maich 2022, stating the reasans Tor nor-ullilmenl of he prescibes nel worth critesia of TR 150 millicn as @t 31 March 2021, Subseguently oo 28 July 3022,
anulher chance was given to PA entities which cxisted as gt 17 March 2020 with tie net wertk of 1RR 150 millien 25 ot 21 Marck 2027 to re-apply for the licease, sczordingly,
Zeakpiny has re-submitted the BA applcation on ¢ Sectember 2022 2nd $he applicaton s cumenty under review with RBL,

51 other notes -

2. Mo proczeding nas been nilialed or cending againsl Lhe Grouz Tor holding any benzmi property under te Berami Transachians [Prehibabion) Ack, 1288 (45 of 198387 ard rules
rnade Lhareunder.

b There a7e na rznsactions o reparl on Srypla Currency ar Wirlual Corrency.

o, The Graup has nol been declared as wilful defzelter by any bank or financial insticution ar ather lender,

d. The Group has not antered Into transactdors with Cormpanies struck off under section 248 of the Companias Acl, 2043 oo seclion 560 of Companies Ack, 1555, excent in cerlain
cases for which tha details have bean mentonead Lalow:

Company Mame Mature of transackian Ba.i..;mm a5 at Balancs as at qu:l.t.iu.l:ns hi-p“
21 March 2023 31 March 2022 | with Struckoff
- Compranias

Fayloud Technology Proate Limibed Fayebles - Marketing Services 0.31 = | Creditar
Elitzkrieg Relail Privale Limiled® Payahles - Payrnenl Servicss G_Cl.’): 0,00 'L'r:'_rl'!:'_:!'!r =
Travelur Solutions Privoze Lmited ¥ Fayebles - Payment Services 00 0.00| Hechant

Scala Infotech Privale Limiles® Payables - Pavmenl Servioss Q000 0.00] Merchant

Rece Retall Frivate Limited™ Pavables - Peyment Services 0,00 000 Meschant
Intedlizlay Glogal Private Similed Payables - Payvrment Services . 0.1 L1 Merchank
Glnbal Software Frivate Lmited Fayables - Paymant Sereices .46 - | Merchant

* Renresents balarces, rounded off to "0 ca conversicn o A millica,

a. There are na raesaction whick has been serrendered o disdlosed as income during the vezr In the tox assessmerts under the income 1o act, 18651,
f, There are na charges or sadsfaction yet to be reqistered with BDC teyond the slalulory period.
9. Thera are no funds which have been advanced o loaned of invested [either Tram borrgwsd fumds or share pramiom ar any ather souroes o kind of funds]) by Graup toooc in any
ather persans ar entilies, includirg foreign entites " Trtermediarios ', with the anderstanding, whethes recorded inwnting or otherwise, that the Tntormediary shall;
i. directly ar indirectly el or invest in other peesons o0 entitics idenbficd in any manner whaksceves "Litimate 2enaficlaries") by ar on behalf of the
Group or
Il provide any guarantee, security or the like U or on behall of the Ulkimate Benelidiaries.

For B 5 R & Associates LLP For aid an behall of the Board of heclars of
Charbered Sooouantants COME MOEITKWIK SYSTEMS LIMITED {formarly known as OME
1041 Firm Seqistratlan MNae, 1162510 - 100024 MOBIKWIK 5YSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED)
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